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Chairman’s Statement = Ji g 453

Dear shareholders,

2010 was a year of rapid growth for China Qinfa Group Ltd (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries the “Group”). The
economy of Mainland China further improved, and the demand for
coal by the coal consumption industries continued to grow. With the
joint efforts of all employees and the support of all shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder”), the Group obtained good operating
results. On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 December 2010.

OPERATING RESULTS OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010 the Group achieved revenue of
approximately RMB6,455.8 million, gross profit of approximately
RMB757.6 million and operating income of approximately
RMB555.9 million, representing increases of approximately 64.4%,
78.0% and 115.8%, respectively.

COAL TRADING VOLUME AND SELLING PRICE

In 2010, the demand for thermal coal in the market continued to rise,
and the Group’s coal handling and trading quantity also increased
steadily. In 2010, the Group’s coal handling and trading quantity
was approximately 10.9 million tonnes, representing a growth of
approximately 60.3% from 2009, and the average selling price of
coal of the year increased by approximately 17.4% to RMB579 from
RMB493 per tonne in 2009.

CONTINUOUS INVESTMENT IN QUALITY COAL MINES IN
CHINA

Since the Group acquired 87.88% of the equity interest of Shanxi
Hun Yuan Rui Feng Coal Company Limited (“Ruifeng Coal”) in
February 2010, the Group continued to look for coal mines of high
quality to stabilize the Group’s coal supply. In this connection, the
Group entered into an agreement to acquire 32% equity interest of
Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Ltd (‘Huameiao Energy”) on 27
November 2010 at a consideration of RMB1.6 billion.
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Huameiao Energy owns the mining rights of three coal mines located
in Shuozhou, Shanxi Province, China through three subsidiaries.
All the three coal mines are approximately 100 km away from the
Group’s coal loading station in Datong and are connected by roads
and railway. These three coal mines mainly produce &% and
S with an aggregate coal reserve of approximately 300 million
tonnes. The annual coal output from these three coal mines in 2011
is expected to be not less than 8 million tonnes.

According to the equity interest transfer agreement entered into
in respect of the 32% interest of Huameiao Energy, starting from
the date of completion of the acquisition, the Group will be entitled
to purchase no less than 32% of the coal produced by Huameiao
Energy at the then market price. Besides, the Group will be entitled
to further acquire at least 19% of the equity interest of Huameiao
Energy when suitable opportunities arise so as to obtain a controlling
interest in Huameiao Energy. Up to the date of this report, this
acquisition is still pending Shareholders’ approval.
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According to a document issued by relevant PRC government
authority in 2009, Huameiao Energy was classified as an entity of
merger and reorganization and was eligible to acquire and integrate
coal mines. It is believed that Huameiao Energy would bring to the
Group opportunities to acquire and integrate other coal mining
companies in the Shanxi region.

EXPANSION OF THE SCALE OF THE GROUP’S FLEET

The Group ordered two dry bulk vessels with 82,000 DWT in 2009,
and in May 2010 the Group ordered two additional dry bulk vessels
with 82,000 DWT. The two new vessels are expected to be delivered
and put into use before 31 March 2012 and 30 September 2012,
respectively. After the delivery of the four new vessels, the Group
will possess a fleet of vessels with domestic and overseas carriage
operation capacity of with 600,000 DWT.
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QUALITY INTERNATIONAL COAL SUPPLIER

With years of accumulated experience and dedicated operation, the
Group has established long-term and stable cooperation relationship
with several world renowned coal suppliers in major coal producing
countries. In 2010, the Group became a client of several major
overseas coal suppliers such as Noble Resources Pte. Ltd., Teck
Coal Limited, Pt Arutmin Indonesia and Vietnam National coal and
Mineral Industries Group.

Looking forward in 2011, with the planned commencement of
production of the self-owned coal mines of Ruifeng Coal, the
guaranteed coal supply from the three coal mines of Huameiao
Energy and the expansion and improvement of the logistics facilities,
it is believed that the entire coal supply chain capabilities of the
Group will be gradually realised and the trading volume of the
Group’s coal operation will grow at a faster pace so that the Group’s
revenue and profit from the coal business will further increase.
In addition, the Group will also continue to cooperate with Hebei
Port Group Co., Ltd (“Hebei Port Group”) (formerly Qinhuangdao
Port Group) to work on the construction of the coal port for public
dry bulk commodities (the “Zhuhai Terminal”) in Gaolan, Zhuhai,
Guangdong Province.

| am highly confident in the future development of the Group. On
behalf of the Company, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
all the employees and business partners who have contributed to
the development of the Group and the Shareholders who have been
supporting us. The Group will continue to work hard and reciprocate
your support with better business performance!

Xu Jihua
Chairman

25 March 2011
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Financial Highlights F %544 22

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the AEBRBERARETRFEENELSL - &
last five financial years is set out below: E BEMMERBENAT

RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HL#FE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
-2 ZTTHGF T\  ZTTLHF  ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

Turnover BERE 6,455,805 3,926,993 4,192,484 3,664,632 2,850,489
Gross profit EF 757,617 425,655 559,916 571,394 235,618
Results from operating
activities KEEEEAE 555,872 257,621 443,876 278,508 84,380
Profit before taxation BRI RA 501,888 227,564 395,299 248,316 66,682
Income tax expense FTEiA> (125,236) (98,061) (64,609) (41,085) (13,832)
Profit for the year ERHF 376,652 129,503 330,690 207,251 52,850
Profit attributable to: FE(ERF)
Equity shareholders AR AR
of the Company BEBA 377,222 129,503 330,690 207,251 52,850
Non-controliing interests ~ FF¥EARfE%s (570) - - - -
376,652 129,503 330,690 207,251 52,850
Coal trading volume RERESHE
(000 tonnes) (FHg) 10,918 6,825 6,274 8,023 7,206
Turnover Coal trading volume
= RREZE
7,000 6,456 12
6,000 0
_ | 5000 o 5 o
=% 4000} ses o2 EE
g 6
g% 3,000 285 cha
g st 4
2,000
1,000 2
o} 0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
B Coal trading M Shipping transportation " Iron ore trading
ERES BIEEE HREE S
Gross profit Profit for the year
EX FRRF
800 400
700 350
600 300
cIR c IR
S 500 S8 250
EE 400 EE 200
2 E 300 Z E 150
200 100
100 50
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 0 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
I Gross profit —— Gross profit margin [ Net profit  —— Net profit margin
7 EFIE R |
* There was an one-off disposal gain of approximately * —EENEF-RNERERSIHAR
RMB97,085,000 in 2008. 97,085,000 7T °
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF —ZZTAF ZTTN\F ZTTEF ZIZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRE ARET ARBTT AREBTET
Total assets BERE 6,421,676 4,160,706 2,085,482 1,909,923 1,198,023
Total liabilities BERE (4,647,047) (2,783,419) (1,850,527) (1,274,795) (793,230)
Total equity AR 1,774,629 1,377,287 734,955 635,128 404,793
Notes: PIEE -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March
2008 and became the holding company of the Group with effect
from 12 June 2009 upon the completion of certain reorganisation
steps as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 June
2009 (the “Prospectus”).

The results for the three years ended 31 December 2008 and
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2008, 2007
and 2006 have been prepared on a combined basis to reflect the
results of the Group as if the group structure at the time when the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) had
been in existence throughout the years concerned. The figures for
the three years ended 31 December 2008 are extracted from the
Prospectus.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (R 5 %), aged 54, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. XU is principally responsible for the
Group’s overall business strategic development. Mr. XU has more
than 19 years of management and operation experience in the
logistics and coal operation industries. In 1996, Mr. XU acquired
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., a member
of the Group, and has led the Group to become one of the leading
non-state-owned coal operation companies in China in terms of
annual coal trading volume. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr.
XU was a manager in the Trading Department of Qinhuangdao
Goods Exchange Center from 1992 to 1994. During the period from
1989 to 1991, Mr. XU was the deputy head of Materials Bureau of
Haigang District, Qinhuangdao City, the PRC. Mr. XU did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
Mr. XU was appointed as a Director on 4 March 2008 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.

Ms. WANG Jianfei( E8I7), aged 40, is the chief executive officer
of the Group and an executive Director. Ms. WANG is principally
responsible for the Group’s overall management and operation.
Ms. WANG is also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board. Before her appointment as
the chief executive officer, Ms. WANG was in charge of the finance
department, human resources department, international trading
department, investment management department and shipping
transportation department of the Group. Ms. WANG obtained
an associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles University
Foundation in consortium with Hebei Business College in 1995. Ms.
WANG completed an Executive MBA Programme sponsored by
the FEIARKEZ R E RN EBLZEHFTH O (Risk Capital and
Network Economy Research Center of China Renmin University)
and H Bl EIRETE)A 0 (China Enterprise Management Training
Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG has more than 13 years of enterprise
management and operation experience. Before joining the Group
in 2000, Ms. WANG worked in FIRMEEMER(ZES) AR QA
(COFCO Industry (Qinhuangdao) Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from 1995
to 2000. Ms. WANG has been a director of Tiaro Coal Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, since 30
November 2009. Save as disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
Ms. WANG was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (Z|B#§), aged 42, is an executive Director.
Ms. LIU is principally responsible for the financial and accounting
management of the Group. Ms. LIU graduated with a bachelor
degree in auditing from EFAZ: (Nankai University) in 1991 and
completed a practical finance officer programme from j&5IE A2
(Tsinghua University) in 2006. Ms. LIU has more than 15 years of
experience in the accounting and finance field. Prior to joining the
Group in 2005, Ms. LIU worked as an auditor in 228 IE)R&5t
EE%AAREMT AR (Qinhuangdao Zhengyuan Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.) from 2001 to 2002. From 1995 to 2001,
Ms. LIU worked as the manager at the finance audit department of
AL EE & TR BT AR A7 (Hebei Hengxin Certified Public
Accountants Limited Office), formerly known as &£ &% A1 E#
FIT (Qinhuangdao Audit Firm). From 1991 to 1995, Ms. LIU worked in
FE2EMETS (Qinhuangdao City Audit Bureau). Ms. LIU did not
hold any directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years. Ms. LIU was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May
2008.

Mr. WENG Li (§37), aged 35, is the vice president of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. WENG is principally responsible for
investment management of the Group. Mr. WENG graduated with a
bachelor degree in economics major in international finance from &
JERE: (Wuhan University) in June 1998. Mr. WENG subsequently
studied a graduate program in finance from B2 A ERFE A B
(Graduate School of Wuhan University) during the period from May
2004 to December 2005. Mr. WENG further obtained a master
degree in economics from EJZAZ (Wuhan University) in December
2008. Mr. WENG has been granted the PRC Securities Practising
Certificate (P EIE S ZEFEE ) since 2004. Mr. WENG has more
than 11 years of assets management and investment experience.
Mr. WENG joined the Group in November 2005, and worked as
deputy general manager and general manager of the investment
management department, and president assistant. Before joining
the Group, Mr. WENG worked as an investment assistant and later
as an investment manager in the assets management department of
Changjiang Securities Company Limited (£ TEHRMDERAA]),
a company listed in the PRC with the stock code: 000783, during the
period from June 1998 to October 2005. Mr. WENG did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years. Mr.
WENG was appointed as an executive Director on 21 April 2009.

12 China Qinfa Group Limited FEZ=#EEER AT

1))
MITER(E)

BBt 4258  TTEE - FlLEE
ZREAEEPBELEHERE - F Xt
R—NAN—FEXERNEHAKRE  BE:T
BLEM - WR-_TTRFTWMERF
EREBUBREEHRE - Blxtite
AN AR ER B I FER - N=F
TRFEMAREEHR  H-_FTFT—FF
—EE_F BT ERHERERLRE
A EBMAEREERAREESA -
H—NANAEFE-_TZT—F BL*+g
At EEE M EHMER AR (AHE
R EBEENERAT) MG ER BEEL
Bem—AN—FE2-AARLF XK
IHBRNRESTMENR - EBE=F
iR - Bl W ENMEA LT A REE
FHERRU - BN -_TTN\Fh
ARBEZERWITES -

BUKHE 355 AEBERBEEFHT
é%o NAEFTEEEAEENKREE
s HEAER—NANNFRAZERR
éﬁﬂ BriEestang(fHEe ﬂﬁ
¥) SEHEEBHR_TTNFRAZE
%%£¢+_H%ﬁﬁiékﬂﬁﬁ$
BIIMEAENBEBLER - §EERZ
%%A¢+—Hﬁf*ﬁ SHERBLK
/)=1 Eﬁﬁigfi ° ?EEEA_y = IEIEZ%
8 %% B S %%ﬂ%MEOW%E%ﬁ
BMNFEETERRELR - HEER
ZETRF+—AMALRER - WEE
BREETEINRCERBEE  URE
HENE - RIMAXREER - §EERH
—AANEANBRE_ZSZTHE+ A HH
FEARIZBFBROHBRAB(—HERFE
EWHAR - RHRSE : 000783) BEEE
BEHEEPERIRELE - TRE=F
%@’%%iiﬂ#Eﬂtﬁ“ﬂ#E
TREEHMN - EER _TTNFN
H:+—H%2E%ﬁﬂ§$



Profile of Directors and Senior Management 55 ¢ /5 2 45 B & JiE g

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Z ) , aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. HUANG
is also a member of the audit committee and the chairperson
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board. Mr. HUANG graduated from #EKZ (Zhong Nan
University), formerly known as £ ##E & (Chang Sha Railway
College), majoring in railway transportation in 1965. Mr. HUANG
has been appointed as the legal representative of ERE R BiEH)
#%& (Guangdong Traffic Transportation Association) since 2007.
Mr. HUANG served as the head of EM &7 (Guangzhou Port
Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed as a visiting professor
by L/&/&% X2 (Shanghai Maritime University), formerly known as
888 ERT (Shanghai Maritime Transportation College), in 1996.
Mr. HUANG is also a senior engineer in railway transportation and
has enjoyed a special government allowance granted by the State
Council since 1992 for his outstanding contribution in engineering
technology for the nation. Mr. HUANG did not hold any directorship
in any listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2/85)R), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of science in Business
Administration from Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Prior to joining Xinyi Glass
Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the financial controller of a
subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board, for over three years and had worked with an international
accounting firm in Hong Kong for five years. Mr. LAU did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. QIAN Pingfan (8 fL), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 September 2010.
Dr. QIAN is also a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Board. Dr. QIAN
obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from the South China
University of Technology in 1989. From 1993 to 1998, Dr. QIAN
studied in Fudan University and formally obtained a master’s degree
in business administration in January 1996 and a doctoral degree in
industrial economics in January 1999. Dr. QIAN, currently the officer
and researcher of the Industrial Development Research Centre,
has worked for the Industrial Economics Research Department of
the Development and Research Centre of the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) since 1999, focusing on
the research on the coal and automobile industries, with particular
insight in coal supply chain management. Dr. QIAN has also been
a guest professor and tutor of doctoral degree students at China
University of Geosciences (Beijing Campus) since April 2009. Dr.
QIAN did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during the
last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chief Financial Officer and company secretary of the Company

Mr. MAK King Pui, Ricky (E53%), aged 40, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company. Mr. MAK has
over 15 years of experience in auditing and financial management.
Mr. MAK graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (&
I8 T AE) (formerly known as Hong Kong Polytechnic (F&E T
&[5t )) with a bachelor degree of Arts in accountancy. Mr. MAK is a
non-practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. MAK worked for China Aoyuan Property Group Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board with the stock code: 3883; a
subsidiary of TOM Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board with the stock code: 2383; and an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong. Mr. MAK joined the Group in April 2008.

14 China Qinfa Group Limited FEZ=#EEER AT

1))
B FRITESR(E)

BYNEL 46 R-ZT—ZFFNA
“THRBEZRERBYIIFNTES - =218
ITREFEERZES REZBE
rFMEEGKE - BELTR—NNAN
FREHEBEIARBEIZELEMN - 5
—NAN=FE-NAANF BEELTEE
BREEE  HHR—ANARNE—AR
—NMNNFE-AERESRETIHER
RTEEXLESELEM - BELIR
—NANFREBRRPEARANE
(THBEDEZRERMATPOERLEH
MES BAEETEXRZERARE

£ MR8 FIRRLABITREZH
7 LHBRRHEREEAERAN
M- BELE _TTNFOARTR
FEMERSZHLR) ZFRBHEE R E L
HEERD - ERE=FHRE BIELUE
PMEMR LR R RIETEMESRLL -

SREBAS
RATITGREE TR N A ME

BRERE 405 ARANYM KRR
RAFIWE - BAERERLRMBER
FHEBESISFRLR B ER2ENEE
BTAB(FIBEESEIZNR)  Eest
BYBL+EBN BAERBEGIMAA
IR ESE RRBFT AREETAD
AREHERGE - RIMAKRERGR - &
EESEBRNTREREEMESERS

RABI(—HERERLETHAF] - BHK
5% : 3883) s TOMEBEABR AR (—HER
FIRETHRF] - RO : 28383)H)—
FHB AR REE MBSt E%
BT e FRZEZNFMHAMALEHR -



Profile of Directors and Senior Management 55 ¢ /5 2 45 B & JiE g

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. SHEN Hongwu (GE R ), aged 38, is the vice president of the
Group. Mr. SHEN is principally responsible for the sale and marketing
operation of the Group. Mr. SHEN graduated with a bachelor
degree in economics from A 1L A2 (Zhongshan University) in 1995
and completed an extensive business administration curriculum
presented by the University of Cincinnati (£ B2 AZ) in 2001.
Mr. SHEN has more than 13 years of working experience. Before
joining the Group in 2006, Mr. SHEN worked in management-related
areas in a number of companies, including E Mz R H R E B R
‘A 7] (Guangzhou Development Oil Product Sales Company Limited)
and BINIKTIEAMEIBER A A (Guangzhou Zhujiang Electric
Energy Company Limited) from 1996 to 2006.

Mr. LI Yong (Z=E), aged 37, is the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., a member of the

Group, and is principally responsible for the domestic shipping
transportation business of the Group. Mr. LI graduated with
a bachelor degree in timber processing from Nanjing Forestry
University (@ RMEKRE) in June 1997 and obtained a master
degree in management from Tianjin Normal University (F280
HFAE) in June 2004. Mr. LI has more than 11 years of working
experience. Mr. LI was appointed as the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., in February 2008. During
the period from June 2004 to February 2008, Mr. LI worked as a
project manager in Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co. Ltd.,
a connected person of the Group. Mr. LI worked as a business
manager in Qinhuangdao Huasheng Trading Co., Ltd. (2 &
E 5 AR A 7)) during the period from August 1997 to April 2004,
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business
involving purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending, shipping
and transportation of coal. During the year ended 31 December
2010, the Group continued to focus on these business activities and
expanded its integrated coal supply chain through upward vertical
integration.

Significant Improvement in the Operating Results

During 2010, the Group was able to expand its coal customer base
and establish business relationship with several new large State-
owned power plants such as Beijing Datang Fuel Company Limited
and Shandong Rizhao Power Company Limited. In addition, since
the beginning of the fourth quarter in 2009, the global economy has
gradually recovered from the financial crisis. There has been a revival
in the market demand for thermal coal for electricity generation.
The increase in the market demand continued during 2010. Hence,
the Group achieved a significant growth in the handling and trading
volume of coal as compared to the same period in 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the coal handling and
trading volume of the Group was approximately 10,918,000 tonnes,
representing an increase of approximately 60.0% as compared to
the same period in 2009. The monthly average selling prices of coal
during the year ended 31 December 2010 were in the range between
RMB539 per tonne and RMB620 per tonne, which were significantly
higher than the range of the average selling prices between RMB400
per tonne and RMB539 per tonne during the same period in 2009.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Significant Improvement in the Operating Results (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, profit attributable
to equity shareholders was approximately RMB377.2 million,
which represented an increase of approximately 191.3% from
RMB129.5 million in 2009 or 2.9 times the profit attributable to
equity shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
satisfactory results were primarily due to the substantial increase in
the coal handling and trading volume as a corollary of revival in the
demand for coal-fired electricity in China and the recovery of the
global economy since 2009, and the improvement on the integrated
coal supply chain by the efforts of the management of the Group.

Taking advantage of the Group’s extensive procurement network
and international trade experience, the Group sourced coal from
various overseas suppliers. The quantity of imported coal increased
to approximately 69.7% of the Group’s total coal purchase for the
year ended 31 December 2010, as compared with approximately
56.3% of the Group’s total coal purchase for the year ended 31
December 2009.

Vertical Integration and Improvement in the Integrated Coal Supply
Chain

In order to secure a stable coal supply amid the fluctuating coal
prices, the Group, capitalising the opportunities arising from the
substantial decrease in coal prices and the PRC coal industry
consolidation in 2009, entered into an equity interest transfer
agreement in August 2009 to acquire 87.88% equity interest in
Ruifeng Coal at a consideration of RMB130 million. The acquisition
was completed around the end of February 2010. Ruifeng Coal is the
owner and operator of a coal mine in Hun Yuan County, Datong City,
Shanxi Province, the PRC. The current approved annual production
capacity of the coal mine is 900,000 tonnes. The mine shaft has a
coal reserve of over 59 million tonnes and the coal is of prime thermal
grading. Located approximately 70km from the existing coal loading
station of the Group in Datong City, the coal mine enjoys convenient
transportation. As of the date of this report, Ruifeng Coal is applying
to the relevant government authority for the change of coal extraction
method from underground to surface mining which is safer and can
achieve a higher exploitation rate. The Directors expect that the
coal mine will commence production immediately after the grant of
relevant licences by government department.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Vertical Integration and Improvement in the Integrated Coal Supply
Chain (continued)

Besides, in November 2010, M HEZHEREEER A
& (Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Investment Company Limited)
(“Guangfa Energy”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
equity interest transfer agreement (the “Equity Interest Transfer
Agreement”) to acquire 32% equity interest in Huameiao Energy for
a cash consideration of RMB1.6 billion. Up to the date of this report,
this acquisition is still pending Shareholders’ approval.

Huameiao Energy has three wholly-owned subsidiaries and each
subsidiary holds the mining right of one coal mine in Shuozhou,
Shanxi Province, China. All three coal mines are located only
approximately 100 kilometers away from the Group’s coal loading
station in Datong, and hence, the Directors expect that the
acquisition will enable the Group to strengthen its strategic position
in sourcing quality coal resources in Shanxi Province and provide
the Group with a stable supply of coal. Besides, the Group’s overall
transportation costs can be lowered through procurement of coal
from Huameiao Energy.

Please refer to the section headed “Business Outlook” on page 31 of
this report for more details on the above acquisition.

Ordos Jinfa Materials Co., Ltd (“Ordos Jinfa”), a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an Acquisition and Debt Restructuring
Agreement in December 2009 to acquire 60% equity interest in
Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal Co., Ltd. (“Nayuan Coal”) at a
consideration of RMB857 million. However, the acquisition has been
terminated due to the significant differences between the Group
and the existing management of Nayuan Coal in the management
of Nayuan Coal. In August 2010, Ordos Jinfa received the amount
of RMB129 million as a refund of the paid purchase consideration
for the 60% equity interest in Nayuan Coal. Further information was
stated in the Company’s announcements dated 19 July 2010 and 17
August 2010.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Expansion of International Coal Operation Business

On 23 April 2010, the Group subscribed for a further 8,000,000 new
shares of Tiaro Coal Limited (“Tiaro Coal”) at the subscription price
of A$0.25 per share. As at 31 December 2010, the Group held a
total of 21,400,000 shares of Tiaro Coal, representing approximately
26.35% equity interest in Tiaro Coal.

Tiaro Coal is a company incorporated in the State of New South
Wales in Australia with its shares listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange with the stock code of TCM, and is mainly engaged in
exploration of coal. As part of the equity investment by the Group
in Tiaro Coal, a coal off-take undertaking has been granted by Tiaro
Coal to the Group, in which the Group enjoys a right of first refusal
to the supply of all the coal and other mineral resources produced
by Tiaro Coal or its subsidiaries. Leveraging the Group’s expertise
in coal operation in China and the previous experience in investing
in Australian coal mines, the Directors believe that the acquisition
of equity interest in Tiaro Coal will strengthen the Group’s capability
in sourcing coal overseas and managing the risk of fluctuating coal
prices in the long run.

Strengthening of Coal Transportation Capacity

The Group placed confirmed orders for the construction of two
additional 82,000 DWT bulk carriers from B TEE 5 A A
(China Shipbuilding Trading Company Limited) and A #5 & M B8V &
M2 R) (CSSC Guangzhou Longxue Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.) in May
2010, at a total consideration of about HK$538.2 million. As at 31
December 2010, the Group has ordered a total of four 82,000 DWT
bulk carriers. As at the date of this report, three vessels are under
construction and the construction of the fourth vessel is expected to
commence by the end of July 2011. The Directors expect that two
vessels will be completed and can commence operation in 2011. As
the Group’s coal handling and trading volume continues to increase,
the vessels will strengthen the Group’s coal transportation capacity
and the ability to control the cost of shipping transportation, and will
reduce the risk of increasing shipping transportation costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW B & B EE
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume IWABREENE 5 E

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue (expressed in RMB’'000) A (AN R FrsT) 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF

Coal Handling and Trading BREENRE S 6,316,821 3,361,403
Iron Ore Trading HEOE 5 - 506,845
Shipping & 138,984 58,745

Year ended 31 December

BEtZ-A=1T—-HLEE

Handling and Trading volume HERE S 2 2010 2009
(expressed in "000 tonnes) (X F 3T ) —E-FF —ETNF
Coal Handling and Trading HREERES 10,918 6,825
Iron Ore Trading HELE 5 - 1,168
Due to the more and more remarkable release of the Group’s entire RN EBE B ESSLL A kAR
coal supply chain capabilities and the revival in the demand for coal- Efj EHRANAREERIKE  BR2EK
fired electricity and the recovery of the global economy from the TELREMER  REBMERKY
financial crisis, the Group achieved a significant growth in handling féj SR _ETT N FREEEHEERL
and trading volume of coal as compared to the same period in 2009. E-fHzr—F—=F4+-_A=+—HI+

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the total coal handling FE REBHNERSCENREGFHEY
and trading volume of the Group was approximately 10,918,000 510,918,000F + B —FEF N, FERH £
tonnes, representing an increase of approximately 4,093,000 tonnes F494,093,000MF% 60.0% c BHLE T —
or 60.0% as compared to the same period in 2009. The average EFE+-A=+—HIFFEE  EREH
selling price of coal during the year ended 31 December 2010 was EBNATWEARES9TT M-S,
approximately RMB579 per tonne, which was substantially higher FEERL) AW A R 493 TTH 9 EE
than the average selling price of approximately RMB493 per tonne N

during the same period in 2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bt EEE(Z)
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume (continued) G AR E N E S e (4F)

The average coal selling price and the coal handling and trading HE2 2 ZEF+_A=1+—HIL=

volume for each of the three years ended 31 December 2010, and EEKERBE_ZT—ZTFENA=T

the six months ended 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2010 are set HE-_E-FF+-A=+—HIL/NE

forth in the table below:- A FHORKEEEREEREERE
SEHIINTER : —

Six Six

months months

Year ended 31 December ended ended
BZ+-BR=1-HLEE 30 June 31 December

2008 2009 2010 2010 2010
“TT\F ZTTHhF —B-%F BE BZE

=2 =
XB=+R t=A=t-§
LEAER LEAER

Average selling price THEE 646 493 579 557 596
(RMB per tonne) (BARET)
Average monthly handling and THBRAEER 523 569 910 810 1,010

trading volume (thousand tonnes) 2 5= (FME)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B EIRE(E)
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume (continued) WA E N E 58 (&)

The Group sells coal which is sourced from both overseas and NEBBHEAB/INGH AT IS BB
the PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants, MR REETRTR - KB M ERE
cement plants and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers SHERFE  c AEBZERPAMNPEH
are located in the coastal regions of China. Power plants, being HEHE e AEENTERFERER

the major customers of the Group, purchase coal for their use in B R ARNREE R - UES R AR
the combustion processes to produce steam for power and heat. MREBEENRRE - KEMEEBRED E’\jj;
Cement plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production BRI AR -  TREIAEFNRZ
process. The following table sets forth information regarding the ENFER-ZE-ZFHE iﬁﬁi/\ﬂiu
Group’s coal sales by industry segment during 2009 and 2010: SHEIRISEER} -

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t—-BHLHE

2010 2009

—E-EF —TTNhE
Percentage of Percentage of
Net sales Net sales Net sales Net sales
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
LHEEEFE hiBHE FH
HEFH MEDL HEHE BB
AR®T T (%) ARETFT (%)
Power plants EBRK 4,158,910 658 2,018,953 60.1
Coal traders KRB HH 1,396,683 22.1 799,654 23.8
Cement plants and others 7}<fbl? NEAD 761,228 12.1 542,796 16.1
Total et 6,316,821 100.0 3,361,403 100.0
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume (continued)

The overall segment turnover for shipping transportation in 2010,
including charter hire income from third parties and members within
the Group, increased significantly as compared with 2009. The total
segment turnover for shipping transportation for the year ended 31
December 2010 was approximately RMB863.8 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB657.0 million or approximately
317.7% from approximately RMB206.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2009. The significant improvement was contributed by
the increase in freight rates and charter hire rates compared to 2009
when there was over-supply of shipping transportation capacity
under economic downturn, especially during the first half of 2009.
Besides, the Group generated more income from sublet shipping
business in 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group was
engaged in the business of iron ore trading and generated revenue
of approximately RMB506.8 million. During the year ended 31
December 2010, the Group did not carry out any iron ore trading
activity as the Directors consider that the fluctuation in the iron ore
market in 2010 might bring on additional risk to the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately RMB331.9
million during the year ended 31 December 2010 to approximately
RMB757.6 million from approximately RMB425.7 million during the
same period in 2009, mainly because of the substantial increase in
the coal handling and trading volume.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin remained stable and slightly
increased to approximately 11.7% from approximately 10.8% during
the same period in 2009.

Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s other
income amounted to approximately RMB45.7 million, representing
an increase of approximately 200.7% as compared with
approximately RMB15.2 million in the same period in 2009. Such
increase was primarily attributable to the purchase bargain gain on
the acquisition of Ruifeng Coal and the gain on revaluation of the
Group’s equity interest in Tiaro Coal. The investment in Tiaro Coal
was classified as available-for-sale financial assets for the year ended
31 December 2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of inventories

Cost of inventories of the Group in 2010 amounted to approximately
RMB4,952.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
50.6% as compared with approximately RMB3,287.2 million in
2009. The increase was in line with the increase in turnover.

The Group purchases coal from both overseas and the PRC
domestic market. The following table sets forth information regarding
the Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and net sales
during 2009 and 2010:

BA RS IR (42)

REERZZ—ZFNTFERTEOA
R #4,952,100,0007C * R=_ZEZTNFH
AR #3,287,200,000 70 _F F+ #150.6% °
FHigELE R RABTT o

FEBEESNRTEBENTSRER
B TRV AMAEER _TTNE
R TEHEREERBEEFEY
BRIOR 2 BHY -

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF

Origins of coal % R Sales volume Net sales  Sales volume Net sales
’000 tonnes RMB’000 000 tonnes RMB’000

HE HEFH HE HEFH

g AR¥ETn g AREFT

Indonesia Efe 4,051 2,282,820 1,772 839,056
China H 3,497 1,889,436 2,238 1,035,486
South Africa EES 955 551,177 157 90,429
Australia BN 907 591,901 1,270 680,322
Vietnam fif=) 881 476,358 575 214,703
Canada JIEWN 490 435,457 722 454,879
Others Hitb 137 89,672 91 46,528
Total mEt 10,918 6,316,821 6,825 3,361,403

The Group keeps increasing the network of overseas suppliers to
ensure a supply of coal with reliable and stable quantity and quality.

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its
key overseas and PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed
business relationships with the majority of them over a period
of not less than 3 years. The Group has also been undergoing
upstream expansion through various initiatives, including acquisition
of companies holding coal mines in China and equity interest in an
Australian mining company holding several exploitation rights in
Australia. This enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality
coal.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to approximately RMB122.9
million, representing an increase of approximately 53.1% as
compared with approximately RMB80.3 million in the same period in
2009. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in staff cost.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by approximately 19.7% to
approximately RMB119.7 million during the year ended 31
December 2010.

The increase was mainly contributed by the net effect of:

(1) increase in port service fees by approximately RMB37.4 million
or 52.0% which was in line with the increase in coal sales
volume in 2010; and

(2)  decrease in transportation cost by approximately RMB19.4
million or 77.2% as the Group successfully negotiated with
more of its customers to bear the transportation cost.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2010 amounted to approximately
RMB52.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB22.0 million or approximately 73.1% from approximately
RMB30.1 million in 2009. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in the average outstanding amount of interest-bearing
borrowings and average interest rate during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense in 2010 was approximately
RMB125.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 27.6%
from approximately RMB98.1 million in 2009. The increase was in
line with the increase in profitability in current year. In addition, the
increment was due to the taxation on profit after tax of the PRC
subsidiaries arising from the structure contract arrangement as
described on page 129 of the Prospectus. The Group’s effective
income tax rate was 43.1% in 2009 and 25.0% in 2010. The non-
taxable nature of the one-off gain on revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets and the increase in profitability of shipping
transportation business which is not subject to income tax reduced
the effective income tax rate in 2010.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

During the year ended 31 December 2010, profit attributable
to equity shareholders was approximately RMB377.2 million,
which represented an increase of approximately 191.3% from
RMB129.5 million in 2009 or 2.9 times the profit attributable to
equity shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
significant improvement was due to the increase in profitability of
the coal handling and trading and the shipping business as a result
of recovery of the global economy from financial crisis and a revival
in the demand of coal-fired electricity, and hence an increasing
demand of coal.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and
maintains a healthy financial condition. The Group funds its business
operations and general working capital principally by internally
generated financial resources and bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis 4

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (continued)

The financial position was strengthened in 2010. The Group’s
net current assets as at 31 December 2010 were approximately
RMB801.4 million (Net current assets as at 31 December 2009:
approximately RMB570.0 million). As at 31 December 2010, the
cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB287.2 million (as at 31 December 2009: approximately
RMB376.2 million).

As at 31 December 2010, the total bank and other borrowings
of the Group were approximately RMB3,610.0 million (as at 31
December 2009: approximately RMB2,245.7 million), approximately
RMB2,874.7 million of which were repayable within one year and
carried interest at market rates ranging from 1.05% to 6.13% (2009:
0.83% to 4.86%) per annum.

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December 2010 carried
variable interest rates based on one of the followings: (i) the LIBOR
plus 1%, (i) 10% discount on the per annum interest rate quoted by
the People’s Bank of China in respect of three-year borrowings and
(i) 30% up on the per annum interest rate quoted by the People’s
Bank of China in respect of five-year borrowings. (31 December
2009: (j) the LIBOR plus 1% and (i) 10% discount on the per annum
interest rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China in respect of
three-year borrowings).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
except amounts of approximately RMB25.6 million and RMB121.6
million held in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD”) and United States dollars
(“USD”), respectively, were held in RMB. The Group’s interest-
bearing borrowings made in RMB and USD were approximately
RMB1,735.5 million and RMB1,874.5 million, respectively.

The gearing ratio (calculated as interest-bearing borrowings
divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was
approximately 56.2% (as at 31 December 2009: approximately
54.0%).
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGING

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in
HKD, RMB and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while
overseas purchases are usually denominated in USD. The Group’s
subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB.

The Group has entered into several RMB forward contracts with
authorised financial institutions in order to reduce the negative
impact caused by RMB appreciation. The purpose of these
transactions is to control the cost of the Group’s RMB investments,
in terms of foreign currencies, that are required to be injected into
the PRC in the near future. As at 31 December 2010, the Group
had four outstanding foreign exchange option contracts and eight
outstanding non-deliverable forward portfolio contracts. The fair
value of these contracts was assets of approximately RMB4.2 million
as at 31 December 2010.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP AND GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB2,392.3 million (as at 31 December
2009: approximately RMB2,003.3 million) in forms of property, plant
and equipment, inventories, trade and bill receivables and bank
deposits were pledged to banks for credit facilities granted to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2010, Mr. XU Jihua, the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, provided guarantees to banks for
granting banking facilities of an amount equivalent to approximately
RMB1,568.5 million to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2010

The Directors have considered the dividend policy as set forth in
the Prospectus. In light of the anticipated capital expenditure and
investments of the Group, the Directors consider that it would
be more appropriate to deploy the financial resources to further
strengthen the capital position and business development of the
Group. On this basis, the Directors have decided not to declare
any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010. Hence,
there will not be any resolution for the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to be tabled at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “Annual General Meeting”). The
Directors are committed to the proposed dividend policy set forth
in the Prospectus and will consider the declaration and payment of
such dividend in accordance with such policy in the forthcoming
financial years.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed 486 employees.
The Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to
motivate its staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In
addition to the basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to
those staff members with outstanding performance.

Members of the Group established in the PRC are also subject
to social insurance contribution plans organised by the PRC
government. In accordance with the relevant national and local
labour and social welfare laws and regulations, members of the
Group established in the PRC are required to pay on behalf of their
employees a monthly social insurance premium covering pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other
relevant insurance. Members of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund scheme, if
applicable, in accordance with the applicable Hong Kong laws and
regulations.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION (continued)

Moreover, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as defined in the
Prospectus) was adopted in June 2009 to retain staff members
who have made contribution to the success of the Group. As at 31
December 2010, options to subscribe for in aggregate 8,000,000
Shares were granted to an executive Director and 23 employees of
the Group. The Directors believe that the compensation packages
offered by the Group to its staff members are competitive in
comparison with market standards and practices.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Although the global economy has recovered from the financial
crisis and the international commodity markets are generally
stabilised, there are a number of uncertainties, such as debt crisis
amongst the European countries and the macro-economic control,
inflation, potential interest rate hike, tightened liquidity and policy
transformation in China, which could adversely affect the demand for
electricity in China and demand for thermal coal in the forthcoming
years. The Group will continue to take advantage of the continuous
economic growth in China. The Directors also believe that the level
of domestic production and consumption in China will continue to
increase steadily. These will stimulate the demand for electricity and
the thermal coal as the principal raw materials for power generation.

In view of the anticipated increase in the demand for coal products,
the Group will continue to improve its business models with the
following activities:
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3

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

(1)

Construction of the Zhuhai Terminal as a strategic integration
of existing supply chain

A sino-foreign joint venture agreement was entered into in
October 2009 with Hebei Port Group (formerly Qinhuangdao
Port Group) for the establishment of a joint venture for the
construction and operation of the Zhuhai Terminal (as defined
in the Prospectus). The agreement became effective from
22 March 2010. The joint venture will have a registered
capital of RMB519 million of which the Group will contribute
60% and Hebei Port Group will contribute 40%. The Group
will contribute a total of RMB311.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$353.9 million) for the registered capital
of the joint venture out of the net proceeds from the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The total investment
amount of the joint venture will be approximately RMB1.5
billion and shall be arranged by the joint venture. As at the date
of this report, the Group had invested approximately RMB47.8
million from the net proceeds from the Global Offering for the
development of the Zhuhai Terminal.

The Zhuhai Terminal is strategically located in the southeast
region of Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, China, thereby
allowing the Group to (i) take advantage of its proximity to
customers located in the coal consuming coastal cities in
southern China; (i) react more quickly to customers’ need;
and (iii) lower transportation cost. The berthing capacity of
Zhuhai Terminal is 100,000 DWT (construction structure:
150,000 DWT) which enables it to accommodate Capesize
and Panamax vessels for coal transshipment. The Group will
be able to further strengthen its coal storage and blending
capacities as Zhuhai Terminal can serve as a site for blending
and storage of coal. As Zhuhai Terminal will have an annual
throughput capacity of 20 million tonnes which can also serve
as a centre for coal exchange, it can facilitate an advancement
in the Group’s ability to further procure and sell coal in the coal
trading market.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

(1)

Construction of the Zhuhai Terminal as a strategic integration
of existing supply chain (continued)

The Zhuhai Terminal is expected to commence operation in
mid 2012. Upon the completion of Zhuhai Terminal, and taking
into consideration the four existing coal loading stations of the
Group, a dominant and integrated sourcing, transportation
and sales network running across the territory of China can be
formed.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 March
2010 for further details.

Construction of two new vessels to strengthen existing
transportation capabilities

As discussed above, the Group placed confirmed orders for
the construction of two additional 82,000 DWT bulk carriers in
May 2010 at a total consideration of about HK$538.2 million.

The Group has been planning to improve the efficiency of
its fleet. The construction of vessels is consistent with this
plan. Also, as the Group’s coal handling and trading volume
continues to expand, the increase in the number of the
Group’s own vessels, and thus its shipping transportation
capacity, could enhance the Group’s control over its handling
and trading costs and reduce the risk faced by the Group due
to any fluctuation in transportation costs.

Further information is stated in the Company’s announcement
and circular dated 15 May 2010 and 26 July 2010,
respectively.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

©)

Expansion of the customer base

In addition to maintaining established business relationship,
the Group has taken initiative to deepen coal sales with the
existing customers. Note that many of the Group’s customers
are large scale Stated-owned enterprises in China, which
have a lot of power plants, of which the Group had business
relationship with some of them only. Thus, the Group can
further boost coal sales via leveraging the existing business
relationship. Moreover, the Group is actively looking for
opportunities to expand the customer base, developing
business relationship with new sizable domestic power groups
in China. The expansion of the Group’s customer base is an
important strategic step in consolidating the customer base,
developing coal production and sales and expanding the
Group’s income sources.

Coal loading stations along Dagin Railway and in coal
producing area

The Group is actively looking for suitable locations in Shanxi
Province, China for the construction, leasing or acquisition of
additional coal loading stations. In addition, the Group is also
exploring acquisition or leasing opportunities of the existing
coal stations along the Dagin Railway in order to strengthen
the coal processing and transportation capacity of the Group
in the region.

Acquisition of equity interest in coal mining company as a
vertical integration strategy to ensure stable supply of coal

Although the Group terminated the acquisition of 60% equity
interest in Nayuan Coal in July 2010 and received the refund
of paid purchase consideration in August 2010, the Directors
consider that acquisition of coal mine or equity interest in coal
mining company plays an important role in reinforcing the
Group’s vertical integrated supply chain of coal. This vertical
integration strategy will enable the Group to secure a supply
of coal with reliable and stable quality and quantity, which
can then enhance the Group’s competitiveness as well as
strengthen the relationship with the Group’s customers.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)
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Acquisition of equity interest in coal mining company as a
vertical integration strategy to ensure stable supply of coal
(continued)

Huameiao Energy

As discussed above, in November 2010, Guangfa Energy, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Equity Interest
Transfer Agreement to acquire 32% equity interest in
Huameiao Energy for a cash consideration of RMB1.6 billion.
Up to the date of this report, this acquisition is still pending
Shareholders’ approval.

According to a document in relation to the Approval of
Merging and Reorganisation of Coal Enterprises in Pinglu
District, Shuozhou (the “Document”) issued in September
2009 by the Work Leading Group Office of the Merging and
Reorganisation of Coal Enterprises in Shanxi Province (1L
FAERBECERIEARES TEEZENAZE), Huameiao
Energy is defined as a merging and reorganisation entity, with
qualifications for the acquisition or integration of coal mines.
According to the Document, Huameiao Energy is allowed to
acquire and consolidate three coal mines in Shuozhou, Shanxi
Province, China. All three coal mines are located approximately
100 kilometres away from the Group’s coal loading station
in Datong and have road and railway connections. The
coal mining rights are held through the three subsidiaries of
Huameiao Energy as follows:—
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

(5)  Acquisition of equity interest in coal mining company as a
vertical integration strategy to ensure stable supply of coal
(continued)

Huameiao Energy (continued)

e AWM TBEREZREFREEXBMRAAF (Shanxi
Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Xingtao Coal
Company Limited) holds the mining right of the coal mine
with a site area of approximately 4.3 sg. km (“Xingtao
Coal Mine”). According to a document issued by the
Coal Industry Bureau of Shanxi Province in July 2010,
Xingtao Coal Mine has coal reserve of approximately
127.8 million tonnes and an annual output capacity
of not less than 1.5 million tonnes. Xingtao Coal Mine
produced approximately 2.3 million tonnes of coal for
2010 and is expected to produce not less than 3 million
tonnes of coal annually thereafter.

e AWM TEREZREHEEEXEAR DA (Shanxi
Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Fengxi Coal
Company Limited”) holds the mining right of the coal
mine with a site area of approximately 2.4 sqg. km
(“Fengxi Coal Mine”). According to a report issued by
the Shanxi Province Coal Geological Company (L7
LI IHE A a]) in June 2005, Fengxi Coal Mine has
coal reserve of approximately 92.4 million tonnes. Fengxi
Coal Mine has commenced coal production by the end
of 2010 with an annual planned production capacity of
not less than 2.5 million tonnes of coal.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

©)

Acquisition of equity interest in coal mining company as a
vertical integration strategy to ensure stable supply of coal
(continued)

Huameiao Energy (continued)

. WM FEREZRESAKEFBR AT (Shanxi
Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Chongsheng Coal
Company Limited*) holds the mining right of the coal
mine with a site area of approximately 2.9 sqg. km
(“Chongsheng Coal Mine”). According to a document
issued by the Coal Industry Bureau of Shanxi Province
in July 2010, Chongsheng Coal Mine has coal reserve of
approximately 88.2 million tonnes and an annual output
capacity of not less than 0.9 million tonnes. Chongsheng
Coal Mine is now under technological modification and
is expected to commence coal production in the third
quarter of 2011 with an annual planned production
capacity of not less than 2.5 million tonnes of coal.

Guangfa Energy has no obligation to bear any construction
and investment cost for the coal mines owned by Huameiao
Energy.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 17
November 2010 for further details.

The Group is in the process of preparing the circular in relation
to this acquisition. The circular is expected to be dispatched to
the Shareholders on or before 31 May 2011.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business involving
purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending, shipping and
transportation of coal. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 21 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensvie income on page 69 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 15 to the
Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year under review are set out in note 30 to the Financial
Statements.

DONATION

Charitable and other donation made by the Group during the year
under review amounted to RMB323,000.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the

Company during the year under review are set out in note 30 to the
Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, as at 31
December 2010, share premium amounting to approximately
RMB495 million (2009: RMB495 million) was distributable to
Shareholders, subject to the condition that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be made,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years ended
31 December 2010 and the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 is set out on page 9
of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2010 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LIU Xiaomei

Mr. WENG Li

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. CHEN Wenjing
(resigned on 21 June 2010)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Dr. QIAN Pingfan
(appointed on 20 September 2010)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article
83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

Dr. QIAN Pingfan will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “Annual General Meeting”) in
accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles and Mr. WENG Li and
Mr. HUANG Guosheng will retire by rotation in accordance with
Article 84 of the Articles. All retiring Directors, being eligible, would
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

WAIVER OF EMOLUMENTS

Dr. CHEN Wenjing resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 21 June 2010, and agreed to waive all of his
director’s fee amounted to RMB135,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010. In 2009, Dr. CHEN Wenjing agreed to waive all of
his director’s fee amounted to RMB129,000.
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Mr. QIAN Pingfan was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director effective from 20 September 2010. He has agreed to waive
all directors’ fee throughout the term of his appointment

Save as disclosed above, no Director has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus), the
details of which are set forth in the paragraphs under “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company and any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on page 11 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which each
of them had taken or deemed to have taken under the provisions of
the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

EERESTRAERRKRS - HEAKRSD
REZHP2EERAR(E)

BTAELTARERETESRSLZ
FAETRI([RESFR ) ZEBHMARE K
RN A T v=g (N

1. Interests in the Company 1. RAERRRZHEZS
Approximate percentage
of issued share capital
of the Company (%)
Number of shares EARDATBBITRA
BB E 2B E 5 L (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director  Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
EEpnE EmME HeE KB "R KB
Mr. XU Jihua* Corporate 593,000,000 (Note 1) Nil 57.2 Nil
REELE NGl 593,000,000 (FizE1) Eis 57.2 i3
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 (Note 2) Nil 4.8 Nil
ERIRZ L BEmEAA 50,000,000 (Hff7E2) e 4.8 o
Mr. WENG Li Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 (Note 3) Nil 0.3 Nil
BUkE EmEAA 3,000,000 (PH7E3) i 0.3 =
Ms. LIU Xiaomei Beneficial Owner 600,000 (Note 4) Nil 0.1 Nil
Blg it BHEERA 600,000 (Hfi7E 4) Eis 0.1 =
Notes: FisE -
1. The Shares are held directly by Fortune Pearl International 1. % 2= §% {9 ®Fortune Pearl

Limited (“Fortune Pearl”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. XU
Jihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. XU Jihua is deemed to have
interests in the 593,000,000 Shares.

2. Ms. WANG holds 15,000,000 Shares and the remaining
Shares are held under the trust scheme adopted by Fortune
Pearl on 13 June 2009 (the “Trust Scheme”).

3. Mr. WENG holds 900,000 Shares and the remaining Shares
are held under the Trust Scheme.

4. The beneficial interest is in the form of options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 12 June 2009.

Mr. XU Jihua, being a Director, is also acting as the
Chairman of the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS ESERESTHRAEREKR®S - HERS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING RESTZEBZNRE(E)

SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

2. Interests in associated corporations 2. AIEESEEZRER

Name of

Name of associated Number of Percentage of
Director corporations Capacity shares issued shares (%)
EEpR B EE SRR 514 ROEE EBITIRG B2 (%)
Mr. XU Jihua Fortune Pearl Beneficial owner 1 100
REERSE Fortune Pearl ExnlEEA 1 100

BREXFHEEIN R-T—FF

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(@) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them had taken or
deemed to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or
(b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:—
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FTERRAEXDATBRAF ZEEZRAE
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE (%)

COMPANY (continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company AAFEFREEOCA0B T E@A

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

of the Company (%)
Number of shares EARQATE BHITRA
BB B 2 E 72 EE(%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholder positions positions positions positions
IR A i) KB L3y KB
Fortune Pearl (Note 1) 593,000,000 Nil 57.2 Nil
Fortune Pearl (Ff3£1) 593,000,000 i 57.2 i
Equity Trust (HK) Limited (Note 2) 109,900,000 Nil 10.6 Nil
BEEERE(EB)BRAR(HFE2) 109,900,000 = 10.6 i
Mr. XU Da (Note 3) 100,000,000 Nil 9.6 Nil
mERE(HFE3I) 100,000,000 it 9.6 i
Mr. CHEAH Cheng Hye (Note 4, 6) 73,220,000 Nil 7.1 Nil
B gL E(HiEE4, 6) 73,220,000 i 7.1 i
Ms. TO Han Yin (Note 4) 73,220,000 Nil 7.1 Nil
MBELZ LT (MEE4) 73,220,000 i 7.1 i
Heng Seng Bank Trustee 73,220,000 Nil 71 Nil
International Limited
(“HSBTIL”") (Note 4)
BARITEFTBEEREER QA 73,220,000 it 7.1 i
(MBA{EFED) (FIFE4)
Cheah Company Limited (“CCL”) (Note 5) 73,220,000 Nil 71 Nil
Cheah Company Limited ([CCL) (K% 5) 73,220,000 i 71 i
Cheah Capital Management 73,220,000 Nil 74 Nil
Limited (“CCML”") (Note 6)
Cheah Capital Management 73,220,000 ik 7.1 i
Limited ([CCML ) (Hf3£6)
Value Partners Group Limited 73,220,000 Nil 7.4 Nil
(“VPG”) (Note 7)
Value Partners Group Limited 73,220,000 it 7.1 i
(VPG (K3ET7)
Value Partners Limited (“VPL”) 73,220,000 Nil 71 Nil
Value Partners Limited ([VPL]) 73,220,000 ik 7.1 i
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (continued)

Notes:
1. Fortune Pearl is wholly-owned by Mr. XU Jihua.

2. Equity Trust (HK) Limited is the trustee of the Trust Scheme
holding on trust 109,900,000 Shares for the benefit of the
participants of the Trust Scheme, namely Ms. WANG Jianfei, Mr.
XU Da, Mr. WENG Li, Mr. LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha.

3. Mr. XU Da holds 30,000,000 Shares, and the remaining Shares are
held under the Trust Scheme.

4. HSBTIL holds 100.00% direct interest in CCL and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which CCL is deemed
to be interested, HSBTIL is a company incorporated in Bahamas,
a trustee for a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of
which include Mr. CHEAH Cheng Hye and certain members of his
family. Ms. TO Hau Yin is the spouse of Mr. CHEAH Cheng Hye.

5. CCL holds 100.00% direct interest in CCML and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which CCML is
deemed to be interested.

6. CCML and Mr. CHEAH Cheng Hye hold 28.69% and 31.96%
direct interest in VPG, respectively and are accordingly deemed
to have an interest in the Shares in which VPG is deemed to be
interested.

7. VPG holds 100.00% direct interest in VPL and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by VPL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme detailed in note 28 to the Financial Statements, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2010 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors (save for Ms. LIU Xiaomei who
had options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) to
subscribe for 600,000 Shares, their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has adopted
a performance-based rewarding system to motivate its employees
and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to
the basic salaries, year-end bonuses will be offered to those staff
members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual experience, performance
and responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by
companies of comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11
to the Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers were as follows:

Purchases KRR

— the largest supplier — R AfHtrER

— five largest suppliers in aggregate —RARHEEER
Sales HERE

— the largest customer —HmAEP

— five largest customers in aggregate —RAAREFAEE

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions that are
exempted under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2010:-

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
each member of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus), and their respective equity interest holders (which
include Mr. XU Jihua, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all
being controlling shareholders of the Company) entered into the
Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a term of 10
years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to pay an annual fee
of RMB10,000 to each member of the China Qinfa Group for the
exclusive management and operation of the coal operation business
and the inland shipping transportation business of the China Qinfa
Group, and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section headed
“Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the Prospectus.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements dated 25 October 2010,
Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. XU Da, the then
shareholders of a member of China Qinfa Group, Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Trading Co., Ltd (“Qinhuangdao Trading”), transferred all their
interests in Qinhuangdao Trading to Ordos Dongsheng Yifa Materials
Co., Ltd. (“Ordos Yifa”), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Qinfa
Logistics.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules to the Company for all
transactions under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance
with the applicable announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has confirmed that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s board
of directors;

b.  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

c.  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that dividends or other distributions have
been made by the China Qinfa Group to the holders of their
respective equity interests.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions were entered
into: () in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (i) in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements governing
such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (jii)
either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than those available to or from independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed that
(i) the transactions carried out during 2010 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts
and have been operated so that all revenue generated by China
Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa Logistics; (i) no dividends or
other distributions have been made by any member of China Qinfa
Group to its equity interest holders; and (i) any new contracts or
renewed contracts have been entered into on the same terms as the
existing Structure Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as
the Group is concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a
whole.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The principal terms of the
two schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on
12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme whereby one executive Director and 25 employees of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise
the contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
except that:

(i) the exercise price per share is HK$2.52; and

(i) the total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
8,400,000 Shares.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right to do so
has been terminated upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange.

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
has a vesting period of one to three years commencing from
3 July 2009, being the listing date of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the option in cash.

All options under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme were granted on 12
June 2009 at an exercise price of HK$2.52 per Share.
Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted under

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(@) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the
first anniversary of the Listing Date;

(b)  30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the
second anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(c)  40% of the total number of the options can be exercised
from the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing Date.

The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was determined using the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”.
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The significant inputs into the model were:

e risk-free rate of return — 3.029% per annum; o  ERREITRE —FF 3.029% ;
e forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and o  JERAIRERKE —56% &
e forecast dividend yield — 1.50% per annum. o TEARRBEUWEmE-FF1.50% o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”,
the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e.
12 June 2009) was HK$7,649,893.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the fair
value of options and is a common choice among various option
pricing models for assessing the fair value of options. The value of
the options depends on the valuation arrived at based on certain
subjective assumptions on variables. Any changes in the variables
used may cause a substantial effect on the assessment of the fair
value of the options.

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and to enable
the Company and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
an employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit
shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business dayj; (i) the average of the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant and (i) the
nominal value of a Share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption, i.e.
12 June 2009. No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2010 amounted to approximately RMB3,610.0 million
(2009: RMB2,245.7 million). Particulars of the bank loans and other
borrowings are set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float with at least 25% of the Shares held
by the public as required by the Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to compete
(either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2010 and up to the date of this
report, save for Mr. XU Jihua'’s legal ownership in the equity interest
in members of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus).

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus) and the executive Directors (collectively,
the “Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 12 June 2009 in favor of the Company. The Convenantors
have provided the Group with written confirmations that they and
their associates (other than members of the Group) have fully
complied with the deed of non-competition throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed of
non-competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of
refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Prospectus) on their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Covenantors and
their respective associates did not direct any Business Opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the
independent non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on
the decision made in relation to Business Opportunity.

AUDITORS
The financial statements in this report have been audited by KPMG

who will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,
Xu Jihua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011

BE  HEIMEARQF LTRSS

BE-T-THT-A=t+-AL%
R INTEE SO0 PN Tt
Bl I S R L -

AEEEMm
HhEE
TE

BB —T——F=ZA-+HH

Annual Report 2010 —Z2—EF £}

55



\

Corporate Governance Report AR ER G

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise on accountability
and transparency and are adopted in the best interest of the
Company and its Shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Group has complied with the applicable code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2010, save that upon the resignation of Dr. CHEN
Wenijing effective from 21 June 2010, the remuneration committee of
the Board had only two members, one being an executive Director
and the other an independent non-executive Director, which did
not comply with the requirement under code provision B.1.1 of the
Code that a majority of the members of the remuneration committee
should be independent non-executive Directors. This was rectified
with the appointment of Dr. QIAN Pingfan, an independent non-
executive Director, as a member of the remuneration committee
effective from 20 September 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to
oversee all major matters of the Company, including the formulation
and approval of the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
internal control and risk management systems, monitoring
its operating and financial performance, and evaluating the
performance of the senior management. The Directors, individually
and collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group
and the company secretary. Management information is provided
to enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when
requested. The company secretary provides secretarial support to
the Board and ensures adherence to Board procedures and the
relevant rules and regulations which are applicable to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities and Delegation (continued)

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to these officers for the implementation of Board
decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated functions
and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the
aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, four of whom
are executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LIU Xiaomei

Mr. WENG Li

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. CHEN Wenjing
(resigned on 21 June 2010)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Dr. QIAN Pingfan
(appointed on 20 September 2010)

All four executive Directors are responsible for implementating the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including,
but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all
major and material matters of the Group. The Company maintains
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

After the resignation of Dr. CHEN Wenjing on 21 June 2010, the
Board had only two independent non-executive Directors, which
did not comply with the requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. This was rectified by the appointment of Dr. QIAN Pingfan
as an independent non-executive Director on 20 September
2010. Save as disclosed above, the number of independent non-
executive Directors has met the requirements under the Listing Rules
and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has appropriate accounting professional
qualifications. The independent non-executive Directors bring a
variety of experience and expertise to the Company. Biographical
details of the independent non-executive Directors are set out
on page 13 of this annual report. Each of the independent non-
executive Director has confirmed in writing of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors and
auditors of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board held four
meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with the
Articles, and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:

Name of directors EEHE

Mr. XU Jihua REERE
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIFR L+
Ms. LIU Xiaomei Eill=isE ot
Mr. WENG Li 8§ YLK
Dr. CHEN Wenijing BRSCARTE

(resigned on 21 June 2010)

Mr. HUANG Guosheng | LA
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2Rz E
Dr. QIAN Pingfan BEAEL

(appointed on 20 September 2010)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Jihua is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director,
responsible for providing advice for the overall management and
strategic development and overseeing the operation of the Board.
The other executive Director Ms. WANG Jianfei acts as the Group’s
chief executive officer who is responsible for the Group’s overall
management, corporate development, strategic planning and the
supervision of day-to-day operation. The segregation of duties and
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive officer
ensures a balance of power and authority.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management of the Group. The remuneration committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as market practice and conditions. The members of the
remuneration committee of the Board are Ms. WANG Jianfei, Dr.
QIAN Pingfan and Mr. HUANG Guosheng. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is
the chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The remuneration committee met once during 2010 to assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management
and review their remuneration. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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Number of
attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Name of directors

Ms. WANG Jianfei

Dr. CHEN Wenijing
(resigned on 21 June 2010)

Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Dr. QIAN Pingfan
(appointed on 20 September 2010)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board include
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors and senior management of the
Group, and assessing of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The nomination committee carries
out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. The members of the nomination
committee of the Board are Ms. WANG Jianfei, Dr. QIAN Pingfan and
Mr. HUANG Guosheng. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of
the nomination committee.

The nomination committee met once during 2010 to recommend the
appointment of Dr. QIAN Pingfan as an independent non-executive
Director and ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of
the business of the Company. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below:

Name of directors EENR
Ms. WANG Jianfei Ealfii e
Dr. CHEN Wenijing PR S AiiE 1

SR E IR
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11
0/0

(resigned on 21 June 2010)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Dr. QIAN Pingfan
(appointed on 20 September 2010)
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on 12 June 2009. Except Dr. CHEN Wenjing who resigned on 21
June 2010 and Dr. QIAN Pingfan who entered into an appointment
letter with the Company on 20 September 2010 for an initial term of
one year, other independent non-executive Directors entered into
renewed appointment letters with the Company on 12 June 2010 for
a term of one year. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded
of their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2010
and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and approve
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
The audit committee had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including accounting practices and principles adopted by the
Group. As of the date of this report, the audit committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik
Yuen, Dr. QIAN Pingfan and Mr. HUANG Guosheng. Mr. LAU Sik
Yuen is the chairperson of the audit committee of the Board. After
the resignation of Dr. CHEN Wenjing on 21 June 2010, the audit
committee had only two members, which did not comply with the
requirement under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. This was rectified
by the appointment of Dr. QIAN Pingfan as a member of the audit
committee on 20 September 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the audit committee held
two meetings and the individual attendance of each member is set
out below:

ESHR

Name of directors

Dr. CHEN Wenijing PR S i 4

(resigned on 21 June 2010)

Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R LA
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2R & A
Dr. QIAN Pingfan BB L

(appointed on 20 September 2010)

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2009 and interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2010 to the Board for approval. The
audit committee also reviewed the accounting issues raised by the
independent auditor of the Company and their fees and concluded
with satisfaction with respect to the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of the
Board and its senior management.

The Group has adopted certain internal control policies to manage
and minimize financial and other risks, to ensure timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and to monitor
compliance with laws by the senior management of the Group in the
performance of their duties.

The Group has also established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance with laws
by the Group’s senior management and in its daily operations, and
of carrying out investigations for suspected breaches of law. The
Company convened meetings with the audit committee periodically
to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.
During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and the Directors are of the view
that the existing system of internal control is effective and adequate
to the Group.

REVIEW ON THE GROUP’S EXPOSURE ON COAL
PRICE FLUCTUATIONS AND ITS RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES

The Group engaged one of the leading international accounting firms
to perform an annual review of the Group’s written risk management
procedures over the exposure on coal price fluctuations and
inventory management. The review covered, and recommendations
have been given on, the following areas:

° preparation and renewal of coal price risk management
procedure flow;

° management on price of purchase orders and sale orders;

o implementation, supervision and management of sales
contracts;
° inventory management;

o hedging arrangement for oversea coal sales and purchases.
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REVIEW ON THE GROUP’S EXPOSURE ON COAL
PRICE FLUCTUATIONS AND ITS RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES (continued)

The Board will ensure that the recommended levels will be adhered
to and the risk control policies will be complied with, and significant
breach incidents will be escalated to the attention of the Board.
In addition, the Board will take necessary measures to rectify the
deficiency identified in the report prepared by the accounting firm.

The Board will continue to engage a leading international accounting
firm to perform annual review until the coal operation business has
less than 50% contribution to the Group’s revenue.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to oversee
the preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and
of results and cash flow for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgments and estimates, and have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also
warrant that the Group’s financial statements will be published in a
timely manner.

The statement of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on page 67 of
this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the remuneration to the
Group’s external auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group is set forth below:

Audit services Z RS
Non-audit services IEZBAR TS
Total |5t

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concerned parties in an active and timely manner. Also, the
Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have equal access
to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. The executive Directors and
the chief financial officer of the Company hold regular briefings
and results presentation, attend investor forums and respond to
investors’ call-in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional
investors and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas
countries to keep them abreast of the Company’s business and
development as well as operating strategies and prospects. In
delivering information to investors, the Company also listens to
their advice and collects the feedback from them, in the interests of
developing an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the
Company'‘s investors.

All the financial information and other disclosures, including
interim result, final result, announcement, circular and other notice
of the Company are available on the Company’s website at
www.qginfagroup.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkex.com.hk.

66 China Qinfa Group Limited FEZ#E@EHR AR

BBET &

B2 ZEF+_A=+—HIHF
& REE 2 INEZ AN A A £ B R HE
ZEZRIEEZRE 2 eESImT

RMB’000
AR®T R

3,096
100

3,196
BERRNBERREERE

ARRRIEET RET LT RAZ R
EOAHE AR RERRE RS
AFRBEAR DHE - R HEY
BRREHEBAL TR EEAT
—EIRABER o WS - AR THDHR
S REETEREFAEOEH -

EEEHEERAREAGNBRIERTE
2 ARBRTEF AW BEERITE
HEHRe MEEQH HEREERE
REEREEHESH 2ENTH -
FEMEIIER 2 EBIREEMUT B D
HrEaMAE - (EEEREARRREBMER
ZEATERIA SRR EEEAATR - A
REEZHMERAZRAR  ARRITEEE
BRBEEREZEARRE  §HRER
NANRELEEREPREEMIR

FIEMBERNREMER(BERAATF
HAREAE - REAZEE QMM - B R HE M
) FIER AR B www.ginfagroup.
com N B 22 Fr 48 ik www.hkex.com.hk °



Independent Auditor's Report J& 37 4% St

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 188, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BHERREEARAAKRRK
Z BN BEHR
(REIESHSTMA LA BRI E])

ANRZELRD (VA T R8T HAM ) BB ZFIEMN
FOOE1BBEFRREEBAERAF(ER
A REWNBAR(EEE]) WERE T
WK REREVYBREBENR_ZE—F
F+ZA=1T—HWi&E RARMBKARLR
REBEZHLEFENGEZARAE
,vT|:| db;m*@]i%%ﬂ?v?/m\ i//\b%% PA K
FESFHBCRHERAMEHAER o

ESHGRaUBRRARENEL

BERREBEFEARAEREEKR G ENEZER
S IR 1 B B BR 7 o B R R BB R B
PIRBERERBEE M QLGRS M BR
REZEBEEERRERE M BREROR
PNV E A BAEBES (T E
HREFEkEEER) o

REEMNEE

BANEEERERMANEZHZEFSRE
MBBRREFLER  LERBERRR
& R ZINARE A BIEE M A
BRI SR ARENATAMERNEMBA
T8 FRARERRE -
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Independent Auditor's Report i 3. 4% S Al g 15

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 476G 2 H AR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE —ZT—ZF+_-_F=+—HILtFE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Results from operating activities

Finance income
Finance costs

Net finance costs

Share of loss of associate
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences

for foreign operations
Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets

Other comprehensive income for
the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustment)

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

30().

—E 2 4,5
SHE R A

E ]

HABUA 6
DR

1T

Hibk

RERERER

LUELT N
BT AS

B IS R AN R 5 7(@)
DG EEE R A& 18 19

BB AT 28 7 7

PrSHRA X 8
FREF

HtZHE WA
BINETEEEZ
SN R
AHHESREEN
RAEREFHE

FARAHEHMSEBA
(RERRENDEAE)
13(a)

13(b)

FRAEEBALE

2010 2009
—g-8F C—IINF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
6,455,805 3,926,993
(5,698,188)  (3,501,338)
757,617 425,655
45,717 15,195
(119,748) (100,025)
(122,906) (80,267)
(4,808) (2,937)
555,872 257,621
48,722 13,234
(100,784) (43,291)
(52,062) (30,057)
(1,922) -
501,888 227,564
(125,236) (98,061)
376,652 129,503
(24,583) (46)
(12,918) 12,918
(37,501) 12,872
339,151 142,375

77 =188 AR RERBAC AR R R A — 5D
7 e MARBEEFE AREAFE S
FEAS O BB R B R BT R 301(f)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income EaEmBR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE —ZT—ZF+_-F=1+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBET T AREFIT
Profit attributable to: 1R
Equity shareholders of the Company RAEERFEE A 377,222 129,503
Non-controlling interests IR e (570) -
Profit for the year FEREF 376,652 129,503
Total comprehensive income ER2EBR AL :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAEIERFFE A 339,721 142,375
Non-controlling interests I (570) =
Total comprehensive income FREHEBALEE
for the year 339,151 142,375
Earnings per share BREF
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREAZN(ARKEIT) 14 0.36 0.15
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) BREHERN (AREIT)  14(0) 0.36 0.15

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial F7TE188 B MM A A TS R A — BB

AN

statements. 77 °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ZZ& M B AR

At 31 December 2010 R=—ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Lease prepayments

Other investments

Investment in associate
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Derivatives

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivatives

Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Loans and borrowings

Net assets

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial statements.

FRBEE

YE R G
BEE
HEFANFIA
HARE

R RRIZIRE
ERETRIREE

REBEE

w8

PTAETH

FE W 2 5 BR K K H At FEUGR I
[REEEEER N

Re kReEEY

REIEE
BRREE
FERTE 5 BR 30 I EAth FE A~ F0E
PTAETA
BN IR

REBEEFE
EERERRBAR

FRBAE
AR E

ERREE

BEFE

Note
MI5E

15
16
17
18
19

20(0)

22
23
24
25
26

27

29

23
20(a)

20(c)
27

2010 2009
—g-8F C—IINF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
1,441,241 996,231

210,659 -
51,884 6,053

= 30,390
45,129 -

8,648 6,561
1,757,561 1,039,235

527,481 358,124

4,225 -

2,893,441 1,349,832
951,807 1,037,328
287,161 376,187

4,664,115 3,121,471

(2,874,690) (2,013,813
(778,500) (370,104)

(211) -
(209,333) (167,578)
(3,862,734)  (2,551,495)

801,381 569,976
2,558,942 1,609,211
(48,992) -
(735,321) (231,924)
(784,313) (231,924)

1,774,629 1,377,287

SE77E188 A MM A AN HR AR ) — AP

N

4 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ZEH& M B AR

At 31 December 2010 R-_ZE—ZFF+_-_A=+—H

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

IRAS K (it
EEEN
i

RN R ERTEE AL
EEEE

FERER
REEE

2010 2009

—g-¥F CTINF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MI5E AR¥T AREFIT
30(b) 91,474 91,474
1,628,056 1,285,813

1,719,530 1,377,287

55,099 -

1,774,629 1,377,287

RZE——F=A-T+hBEHIEZEE
BARARESSIERREET

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China
Qinfa Group Limited on 25 March 2011.

Director Director
ZZE EFE

XU Jihuai WANG Jianfei
®hEE E @il

77T E188 A MM A B TSR A0 — &P

statements. 7

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial

o
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Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China

Statement of Financial Position BABHIR UL

At 31 December 2010 R=—ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H

FRBEE
RITE R AR E

REBEE
JE ST E 5 Bk e EL At B MUK TR
Re kB eEHED

RBRE
FETE SRR S EL M A5 5R0R

RBEEFHE
BERE

MRS (it
EEEN
G
A

Qinfa Group Limited on 25 March 2011.

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.

Director
EF
XU Jihua
BREE

Note
MI5E

21

24
26

29

30(a)

2010 2009
—2-2F “TThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR  ARETT
658,807 658,807
945,041 800,599
854 1,324
945,895 801,923
(385,314) (219,528)
560,581 582,395
1,219,388 1,241,202
91,474 91,474
1,127,914 1,149,728
1,219,388 1,241,202

Director

EZE

WANG Jianfei

EBIR

o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity £ZH W55 83

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE —ZT—ZF+_-F=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARTEREAER

Share-based
compensation
reserve
Share Capttal Share Merger Fair value Bxchange PO Retained
capital reserve premium reserve Reserves reserve resenve 2 eamings Total
e BAGER RipaE Al B DAERR B Mekt RAZA &

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARMTT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR ARMTR ARETR  AR%TR

Note 30(c)f) 30(c)i)
Kz 30(c)f) 30(c)i)
At1January 2009 R=ZZNE-B-R = 96,031 - 31,499 297,218 - (62,814) - 362,961 734,955
Total comprehensive FR2H
income for the year WAZE
Poitfortheyer  EREF = . 5 - - - - - 129,503 120503
Other comprehensive Ef2ERA
income

Foreign curency EHEE L
tranglation diferences  SMEAEZE
for foreign operations - - - = = = (46) = - (46)

Net change infairvalue FIfiH &S BAE
of avalble-for-sale  HIAS EXEFE

financial assets - - - - - 12,918 - - - 12,918
Total other HEERAEE

comprehensive

income - - - - - 12918 (46) - - 12,872

Total comprehensive ~ 2ERALE
income - - - - - 12918 (46) - 129,503 142,375

Transactions with ~ EEREEAZRE
equity shareholders, REZERFIR

recorded directly

in equity
Adsing on the REfAmEE

Reorganisation 88 (96,081) - 95,943 - = = - _ _
Copitalsationissue ~ EZAKETT 30(o)i 66,039 - (66,039) - - - 5 - - _
lssuance of shares ~ EBENAH

by Inital Public FEXRG

Offrng A . 533,420 . . . - . . 535471
Issuance of HABRE

shares under the RixHE

over-allotment i

option refated to Bkt

ihe placement 00 3305 . 79,987 . . . - . . 8309
Share issuing RiEARR

XDeNses - - (62,744) - - - - - - (62,744)
Appropriation BEAR

to reserves 30(c)iv) - - - - 9416 - - - (9,416) -
Equity-settled WEREE

share-based TR

payments BERAH 30(c)i) - - - - - - - 2,000 = 2,090
Diidends declred ~ £ABER

and paid during RiEfHEs

the year FEARE 3001 - - - - - = = = (88,152) (88,152)
To transactions ~ SERHEA

with equty IR5HEE

shareholders 91,474 (96,031) 494,633 95,943 9416 - - 2,090 (97,568) 499,957
At31 December  W-ESAE

2009 +=A=1-R 91,474 - 494,633 127,442 306,694 12918 (62,860) 2,090 394,896 1,377,287

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial FE7TE188E MM A AN TS R A — 2B
statements. 7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity LR A RERS Sl AR

Note
i3
AttJanuary 2010 R=%-%5-F-R
Total comprehensive £R2ARALE
income for
the year
Profitforthe year i
Other comprehensive Eft2EHA
income
Foeignourency  ASNEHIEL L
ranglation differences  JMEEE R
for foreign operations
Disposal of avallable- i ER it E
for-sale SRAE
financial assets
Total other Et2EhEE
comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive  2ERALEE
income
Transactions with ~ RERKAAZR A
equity shareholders  REERESR -
andnon-controlling  WERE 5K
interests,
recorded directly
in equity
Non-controling WEE—74
interests arising L7
flomacquistionof 4]
asubsidiary JHEiRER 9
Capital contribution ~ ERFEAE
received in hRHFRE
non-wholyowned  HEAR
subsidiaries e
bynon-controling ~ BAHE
shareholders 30(d)
Appropriation to RENE
eServes 30)iv)
Equity-settled share-  bIEREETI
based payments ROBERAT 300w

Total ransactions with - E2fEZA A
equiy shareholders 2R HHEE

At31 December ~ W=E-3%
2010 +ZA=+-A

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

— T TFE+_A=+—HIEFE

ANIREREARE
Share-based
compensation
reserve Non-
Share Share Merger Fairvalue  Exchange WRHA Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve Reserves reserve reserve =t earnings Total interest equity
Bx  REE  A0EE R AAERE  EXRE  HeBE  REEW Bt FERER  EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARWTn ARWTn ARWTn ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
30(c) i)
30(c) i)

91474 494,633 127,442 306,694 12918 (52,360) 2,09 304896 1,377,287 - 131207
- - - - - - - 311,222 311,222 (570) 376,652
- - - - - (24,583) - - (24,583) - (24,583)
- - - - (12,918 - - - (12,918) - (12,918)

- - - - (12,918 (24,583) - - (87,501) - (87,501)

- - - - (12,918 (24,583) - 311,222 339,721 (570) 339,151

- - - - - - - - - 20,075 20,075

- - - - - - - - - 35,594 35,594

- - - 15,547 - - - (15,547) - - -

- - - - - - 2,522 - 2,522 - 2,522

- - - 15,547 - - 2,522 (15,547) 2,522 55,669 58,191
91,474 494,633 127,442 322,041 - (77,443 4,612 756,571 1,719,530 55009 1,774,629

o

D
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZEEHERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE_—Z—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Operating activities
Cash generated from/
(used in) operations
Interest paid
Tax paid:
— PRC Income Tax (paid)/refund

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of derivative
financial instruments

Cash acquired from
acquisition of a subsidiary

Acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

Payment for investments in
subsidiaries and associates

Acquisition of other investments

Refund of part payments for
aborted acquisition

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital,
net of issuing expenses
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Capital contribution from
a non-controlling shareholder
Repayment of loans and borrowings
Change in pledged deposits
Dividends paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1
January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

REEE
REERRS,
(FPA)HRE
EfFE
ENHIA
— R BIFTSH
(Bf)/BRE

REERME (FA)
RE 3

REED
RGNS,
HEWE - BB KR
TS 30R

HETESRTIA
PSR

WHEMBLRESRS
WEME - BE M&RE

ER)E= NN NG

AN
YR H A 1% &
RIEBUE W)

BB FEN R
REEBAR S FHE
BMEED
BITRAFSFUR -

MREI TR
SR REERSTIA
BB RN EAREE

BRERNEE
[REiwEEZ/GOE 32)
RARLS)
BMEEE G
REFE

RERREEEY
(R4 /18 InFaE

R—A—BZHER
REEEY
EREBHNVTE

RtZA=+—HAzHRE
REEEEY

The notes on pages 77 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.
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2010 2009
—2-%F —TIAL
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HE  AR®FT  ARMT
26(b) 352,324 (412,466)
(99,028) (49,753)
20(a) (85,568) 16,709
......der72s (445,510)
21,452 11,049
481 4,906
1,409 -
9 655 -
(525,489) (197,749)
(1,387,781) (169,320)
- (8,278)
129,000 -
... (,760273) (359,392)
- 586,019
10,088,978 4,518,745
35,594 -
(8,714,747) (3,441,533
85,521 (551,903)
- (133,856)
... 1495346 ¢ 977,472
(97,199) 172,570
26(a) 376,187 201,499
8,173 2,118
26(a) 287,161 376,187
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1

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

1.1

General information and the basis of presentation

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) which was completed on 12 June
2009 to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation
for the public offering (as defined in the prospectus of
the Company dated 19 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”))
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company
of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details
of the Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus. The
Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange since 3 July 2009.

Since all entities which took part in the Reorganisation
were under common control of a group of ultimate equity
shareholders, the Group is regarded as a continuing
entity resulting from the reorganisation of entities under
common control. These financial statements have been
prepared on the basis that the current group structure,
except for the subsidiaries acquired in 2010, had
been in existence at the beginning of the earliest year
presented. Accordingly, the consolidated results of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010
include the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
with effect from 1 January 2009 or, if later, since their
respective dates of incorporation as if the current
group structure, except for the subsidiaries acquired in
2010, had been in existence throughout the two years
presented. The consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and 31
December 2010 have been prepared as if the current
group structure, except for the subsidiaries acquired in
2010, had been in existence as at the respective dates.
All material intra-group transactions and balances have
been eliminated on consolidation.

DARAERREREE

—RARR2IIER

TRRZEEEERAR (AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS”)
and related Interpretations, promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below:

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is rounded to the nearest
thousand. They have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except that the available-for-
sale financial assets and derivatives are measured
at fair value.
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1

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other resources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are described as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

U)

(i)

Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
based on management’s regular review
of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management
when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual
customer. Any increase or decrease in the
impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts would affect the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in
future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual values. The
management periodically reviews changes
in technology and industry conditions,
asset retirement activity and residual values
to determine adjustments to estimated
remaining useful lives and depreciation
rates. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could
result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation expenses in future
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
distributing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a
result of competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles or other changes in
market condition. Management will reassess
the estimations at each reporting date.

Recognition of income taxes and deferred
tax assets

Determining income tax provision involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The management
carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically
to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(iv)

Recognition of income taxes and deferred
tax assets (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised in
respect of temporary deductible differences.
As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair values of available-for-sale financial
assets are measured using quoted prices
in active markets. If information on current
or recent market prices of available-for-
sale financial assets is not available, the fair
values of available-for-sale financial assets
are determined using valuation techniques.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1 NCIb=F—
PREPARATION (continued)

SREREE(E)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued) 12 RREEGE)

(c) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(vi)  Fair value of derivatives

The fair values of derivatives traded in
active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the reporting date. The fair value
of derivatives that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation
technigues in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operation policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
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ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2())).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (i
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see Note 2(j)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination
is allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or
groups of CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see Note 2())).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented
in RMB (the “presentation currency”).

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)  Foreign currency (continued)

(iii)

Financial statements of foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve.

(e)  Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and
receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets are recognised
initially on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows on the financial asset
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)  Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial assets: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash

balances and call deposits with original maturities
of three months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale and that are not classified in
any of other categories. The Group’s investments
in equity securities are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)) and foreign currency differences (see
Note 2(d)) on available-for-sale equity securities,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and presented within equity in the fair value
reserve. When an investment is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive
income is transferred to profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on
the trade date at which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)  Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial liabilities: loans and borrowings and trade
and other payables.

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each reporting date
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

[tems of buildings, vessels, plant and equipment
and other properties are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2())).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs (see Note 2(r)). Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
component is derecognised. The costs of the day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Subsequent costs (continued)

Cost incurred in replacing or renewing the
separate assets in vessels (dry-docking costs)
are capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated period until the next dry-
docking.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset
less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component
has a useful life that is different from the remainder
of the asset, that component is depreciated
separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10 - 20 years
Machinery 4 — 20 years
Electronic and other equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Vessels 10 - 15 years

Mining structures are depreciated on the units-
of-production method utilising only proved and
probable coal reserves in the depletion base.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 33 Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation (continued)

No depreciation is provided for assets under
construction until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and available for intended
use. Assets under construction are transferred
to relevant categories of property, plant and
equipment upon the completion of their respective
construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Disposal

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and are recognised net within other income in
profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent coal mine exploitation rights

acquired through a business combination. Coal mine

exploitation rights are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2())).

Coal mine exploitation rights are amortised using the

units-of-production method utilising only proved and

probable coal reserves in the depletion base.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3k 3% Mt 51

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights
and sea use rights as paid to the PRC’s governmental
authorities. Lease prepayments are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
Note 2())).

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the rights except
that the amortisation is included as part of assets under
construction when the amortisation can be directly
attributable to the cost of relevant assets during the
construction period.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

Impairment of assets

@i

Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through
profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired can include default or delinquency by
a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active
market for a security. In addition, for an investment
in an equity security, a significant or prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost is objective
evidence of impairment.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for
loans and receivables at both a specific asset and
collective level. All individually significant loans and
receivables are assessed for specific impairment.
All individually significant loans and receivables
found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has
been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and
receivables that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together loans and receivables with similar risk
characteristics.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3 3% Mt 53

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses
historical trends of the probability of default, timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against loans
and receivables. Interest on the impaired asset
continues to be recognised. When a subsequent
event causes the amount of impairment loss to
decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity,
to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost, net of
any principal repayment and amortisation, and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
recognised previously in profit or loss. Changes in
impairment provisions attributable to application
of the effective interest method are reflected as a
component of interest income. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of an impairment available-for-
sale debt security increases and the increase can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 383 Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value
of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the
same time. An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually
are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGU. Goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3 3% Mt 53

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Non-financial assets (continued)

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate
separate cash inflows and are utilised by more
than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to
CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the
CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce any goodwill allocated
to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU (group of CGUSs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of the assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 383 Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment
(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.

(k) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Obligation for contribution to local government
defined contribution retirement scheme pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %332 Mot

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognhised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 383 Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3 3% Mt 53

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course
of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net
of returns, trade discounts, volume rebates
and value added tax. Revenue is recognised
when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the
form of an executed sales agreement, that the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable
that discounts will be granted and the amount
can be measured reliably, then the discount is
recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales
are recognised.

Income from charter hire

Income from time charter, which is of operating
lease in nature, is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised on
a percentage-of-completion basis, which is
determined on the time proportion method of each
individual voyage.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 383 Mt 51

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Revenue (continued)

(iii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially as
deferred income at fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and the Group will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are recognised.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as
an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term
of the lease.

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprises interest income and foreign
currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest
method.

Finance costs comprise interest expenses on
borrowings, bank charges and foreign currency losses.
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss or
capitalised using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3 3% Mt 53

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

P

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Income
tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity in which
case the relevant amounts are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax expense (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3 3% Mt 53

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

P

Income tax expense (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously, or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity, or

= different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) The party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 383 Mt 51

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)  Related parties (continued)

(i) The Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(i) The party is an associate of the Group or a jointly
controlled entity in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv)  The party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v)  The party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(v)  The party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued two revised IFRSs, a number of
amendments to IFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group’s financial statements:

° IFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

° Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements

° Amendments to IAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement-eligible hedged items

o Improvements to IFRSs (2009)

The amendments to IAS 39 and Improvements to IFRSs
(2009) have had no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the amendments were consistent with policies
already adopted by the Group.

Details of changes in accounting policies as a result of
adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008) and amendments to IAS 27
are as follows:

° As a result of the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008), any
business combination acquired on or after 1 January
2010 will be recognised in accordance with the new
requirements and detailed guidance contained in IFRS
3 (revised 2008). These include the following changes in
accounting policies:
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3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination, such
as finder’s fees, legal fees, due diligence fees,
and other professional and consulting fees, will
be expensed as incurred, whereas previously
they were accounted for as part of the cost of the
business combination and therefore impacted the
amount of goodwill recognised.

If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining control, these
interests will be treated as if disposed of and re-
acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
control. Previously, the step-up approach would
have been applied, whereby goodwill was
computed as if accumulated at each stage of the
acquisition.

Contingent consideration will be measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes in the measurement of that
contingent consideration unrelated to facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date will be recognised in profit or loss, whereas
previously these changes were recognised
as an adjustment to the cost of the business
combination and therefore impacted the amount of
goodwill recognised.

If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other
temporary deductible differences and these fail to
meet the recognition criteria for deferred tax assets
at the date of acquisition, then any subsequent
recognition of these assets will be recognised
in profit or loss, rather than as an adjustment to
goodwill as was previously the policy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

- In addition to the Group’s existing policy of
measuring the non-controlling interests (previously
known as the “minority interests”) in the acquiree
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in
future the Group may elect, on a transaction by
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interest at fair value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS
3 (revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to any business combinations in
the current or future periods. The new policy in respect of
recognition in the movement of deferred tax assets will also
be applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses and
other temporary deductible differences acquired in previous
business combinations. No adjustments have been made to
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that arose from
business combinations whose acquisition dates preceded the
application of this revised standard.

o As a result of the adoption of IAS 27 (amended 2008),
the following changes in policies will be applied as from
1 January 2010:

- If the Group acquires an additional interest in a
non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction
will be accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill will
be recognised as a result of such transactions.
Similarly, if the Group disposes of part of its
interest in a subsidiary but still retains control,
this transaction will also be accounted for as a
transaction with equity shareholders (the non-
controlling interests) in their capacity as owners
and therefore no profit or loss will be recognised as
a result of such transactions. Previously the Group
treated such transactions as step-up transactions
and partial disposals, respectively.
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3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
any remaining interest retained by the Group
being recognised at fair value as if reacquired.
In addition, as a result of the adoption of the
amendment to IFRS 5, if at the end of reporting
period the Group has the intention to dispose of
a controlling interest in a subsidiary, the entire
interest in that subsidiary will be classified as held
for sale (assuming that the held for sale criteria in
IFRS 5 are met) irrespective of the extent to which
the Group will retain an interest. Previously such
transactions were treated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 27,
these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively to
transactions in current or future periods and therefore previous
periods have not been restated.

In order to be consistent with the above amendments to
IFRS 3 and IAS 27, and as a result of amendments to IAS
28, Investments in associates, the following policies will
be applied as from 1 January 2010:

If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining significant influence,
these interests will be treated as if disposed of and
re-acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
significant influence. Previously, the step-up
approach would have been applied, whereby
goodwill was computed as if accumulated at each
stage of the acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 3 3% Mt 53

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

— If the Group loses significant influence, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with any
remaining interest being recognised at fair value
as if reacquired. Previously such transactions were
treated as partial disposals.

Consistent with the transitional provisions in IFRS 3 and IAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively
to transactions in current or future periods and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements are as follows:

o As a result of the amendments to IAS 27, as from 1
January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary will be allocated between the
controlling and non-controlling interests in proportion
to their interests in that entity, even if this results in
a deficit balance within consolidated equity being
attributed to the non-controlling interests. Previously, if
the allocation of losses to the non-controlling interests
would have resulted in a deficit balance, the losses
were only allocated to the non-controlling interests
if the non-controlling interests were under a binding
obligation to make good the losses. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in IAS 27, this new accounting
policy is being applied prospectively and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4

SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has five major reportable segments, as
sales of coal, sales of iron ore, shipping transportation,
coal mining and port business which are the Group’s
strategic business units. The strategic business units
offer different products and services, and are managed
separately because they require different technology and
marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business
units, the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews
internal management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the CEO
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
adjusted profit before net finance costs and taxes. Items
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such
as unallocated head office and corporate administration
costs are further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in financial assets, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and
other payables attributable to activities of the individual
segments and loans and borrowings managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

4  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Turnover

Reportable segment turnover
Elimination of inter-segment turnover

Consolidated turnover

Profit

Reportable segment profit
before taxation

Elimination of inter-segment
(profit)/loss

Unallocated head office
and corporate expenses

Net finance costs

Consolidated profit before taxation

118 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@ERD A

Al ¥R E 7 BBRR
GzIp: il

D ERE Ca A, Eia
Z ¥

RAOFRRE R
RAIFX

FATE AR A8

AR BRI AR A

(b)) FAIHMESMHHLERE  EHa
BERAELHER
B
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TThEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
7,180,610 4,075,029
(724,805) (148,036)
6,455,805 3,926,993
Y Kl
2010 2009
—E-FF —TETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
562,510 264,171
(662) 249
(7,898) (6,799)
(52,062) (30,057)
501,888 227,564




Notes to the Financial Statements
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4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEPIRE (42)
(b)  Recondiliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or (b) AHREDHAEFETE B
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) BENBEHERE)
Assets EE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Reportable segment assets AISREDHEE 7,437,832 4,598,233
Elimination of inter-segment 53 B0 FE FE R B
receivables and inventories FE ¥ (642,747) (256,563)
Elimination of receivables from e UNS
head office FRIE 2 ¥ 8 (383,119) (219,502)
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 8,648 6,561
Unallocated assets RO EE 1,062 31,977
Consolidated total assets A BERTE 6,421,676 4,160,706
Liabilities aE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Reportable segment liabilities ARED I aE 5,964,696 3,652,945
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7> 5B & &~ 7k 2 %18 (635,473) (255,469)
Elimination of payables to head office  J&{~ 48 R FIA ~ ¥ (942,696) (790,855)
Current tax liabilities ENEAR I B R 209,333 167,578
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIE A& 48,992 =
Unallocated liabilities ROREE 2,195 9,220
Consolidated total liabilities ireBEEE 4,647,047 2,783,419
Annual Report 2010 =& —EF &3}



Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

4

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

©)

Geographic information

The Group’s total assets are primarily dominated
by the assets handling its coal trading, shipping
transportation and coal mining businesses. The coal
are sold primarily to the PRC domestic customers and
most investments in coal mines are physically located
in PRC. Therefore, related assets and liabilities are
almost all located in the PRC. The vessels are primarily
deployed across geographical markets for shipping
transportation throughout the world. As a result, the
directors consider that it is not meaningful to allocate
the Group’s assets and their related capital expenditure
to specific geographical segments. Accordingly,
geographical segment information is only presented for
turnover, which is based on the geographical location of
customers.

Turnover from external customers

Mainland China Hp B R e
Outside Mainland China FR B AR LA S
Total =

120 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@BERADE

4

7 ERERE ()
(© EHEH

AEENBEEETERKEH
BRIRE S - fEE R KRR
REBHEE - RIRERET
TEBEANES  RBEABOIKR
BEE LURPE - Fit - 48
MHEERARET2EHUR
TEH EMEBEREREER
F) 3t [EB A 5& T 35 R A o WU
E=RA RABWRDHE
DAKBEEERERBERH
XUEESE - Bt RHRE
FrREMEBLEFENZERER
25y ERE R o

S EEE
2010 2009
—%-%F -TENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETL
6,359,543 3,522,518
96,262 404,475
6,455,805 3,926,993




Notes to the Financial Statements

TURNOVER

The Group is mainly engaged in sales of coal, shipping
transportation and coal mining businesses.

Turnover for the year mainly represents the sales of goods and
charter hire income.

The amount of each significant category of turnover
recognised during the year is as follows:

Sales of coal IR EHS
Sales of iron ore HIEAHEE
Charter hire income He A

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only
one customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s turnover during the year ended 31 December
2010 (2009: three). Turnover from sales of coal to this
customer, including sales to entities which are known to
the Group to be under common control with this customer,
amounted to approximately RMB786,251,000 and related to
sales took place in Mainland China.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, turnover from sales
of coal and sales of iron ore to the three customers with whom
transactions have each exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover
during the year, including sales to entities which are known
to the Group to be under common control with these three
customers, amounted to approximately RMB613,660,000,
RMB426,537,000 and RMB396,026,000 respectively and
related to sales took place in and outside Mainland China.

S 285 A Pk

R

AEBEETRRFRRHEE NEER
K BRIRFERERT

RELXBIRRHEEERRALE
TUWA -

RERNZTEZRREEHSEHIWN
T

2010 2009
—B-FF —EThEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
6,316,821 3,361,403
- 506,845
138,984 58,745
6,455,805 3,926,993

AEEZEFEMREZ  EHBER
SHRLASEEHRE—_T—TF1+=A
S+ BLFEHRZEEE10%
NEOE——ZEF(ZTTNEF:
=H)  MZARPHERK 2 EZE
H(EREAASEEEZERP &
FES 2 BB ZEXT)OARE
786,251,000 7T  Jy B2 AP B K B /&= A&
RSHEREEM -

HE_TTNAFE+_A=+—HIF
B MRZIBEHAEEFAMNEZE
B0 L2 =2 RFHER R K
BEAELE 2B (BEHEAARE
EEZE=ZERF XRAER 2 B
EE) DRl # A R ¥ 613,660,000
7T~ AR 426,537,000 7T & A R #
396,026,000 7T - JyEd AR B K BE 35 (A
BBSNEELE R SHERE AR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HfblgA
2010 2009
—E-ZFF —TThEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e ARBT T ARETTT
Government grants BT B & () 3,710 14,254
Bargain purchase gain arising #7548 Gt EE
from business combination  Z:E{EEE AU
(see Note 9) (257 9) 15,563 -
Gain from disposal of & AT it
available-for-sale BEE E
financial assets (2B3KI5E13(b))
(see Note 13(b)) 19,584 -
Gain on derivatives PTAET BURES 6,757 =
(see Note 23) (257 23)
Others HAth 103 941
45,717 15,195
()  The Group received unconditional grants from local ) AKERFAREEBEATIE
government during the year as recognition of the RARANEEHEMLEBER
Group’s contribution to the development of local BRIMEEEEDE -
economy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %332 Mt

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Net finance costs

Interest income FEHA

Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W e 5 5R

Interest on borrowings BEERE

Less: interest capitalised into B - HE R
property, plant and FiERE
equipment* BEAREFE >

Bank charges HRITER

Finance costs BETS KR

Net finance costs B ISP AN 558

*

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at an
annual rate of 3.75% (2009: 3.20%).

BRBE AT R

BREBLADE R E MR, (GEA) AT &

18

(@) FATSRAFEE

2010 2009
—2-%F —TETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
(21,710) (11,532)
(27,012) (1,702)
(48,722) (13,234)
82,876 33,413
(186) (437)
82,690 32,976
18,094 10,315
100,784 43,291
52,062 30,057

* BEEBHAERFHNEI75%
TTT AL 3.20%) F A

BAAE -

Annual Report 2010 =& —EF &3}
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Staff costs

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - #FekEmEH
Contribution to defined A E REAE AT B 3K

contribution plan
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses ARETRETER

The Group participates in pension funds organised
by the PRC government. According to the respective
pension fund regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions during the year. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the respective social
security offices, which are responsible for the payments
and liabilities relating to the pension funds. The Group
has no obligation for payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contributions described above.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for all of its employees
employed by the Company in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employee’s
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

124 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@BERD

RS SR AR

BRBE TR (42)

8 TR
2010 2009
—B-8F —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

73,080 32,351
873 698
2,522 2,090
76,475 35,139

REE 2 R BT AR
e REEBHNEARE R
Bl REBENFERLHEAZ
NEEHRK - NEHEMNZH
BRASHAREBERKESIAM
NHREEENS BT RER
B o B LRI AEH
BB S R IR R A A
BERINEREH -

SR N A i R ST
AEERARRBHAEETERE
EREEEHARBHEAE
ERMKEME S ([ RTE 25
21 - HRTIRIBEE EAH
T XEEDLFE - WIRE
SRR AT 8 2 R AIZBB R
R R s A HNRR - R TE &5t &
LEERASEZEENF
HBEVEEZEESRE A&
BENZAEREHFINFA
wiEERERABREENA -



Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

7  PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continueqd) 7 BREANER (&)
()  Otheritems ) EmIaHE
2010 2009
—E-BF —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Cost of inventories* FEmA* 4,952,099 3,287,155
Operating lease charges on premises EHKETHEEFH 6,346 5,425
Depreciation for the property, e
plant and equipment MEfEinE 91,139 76,135
Amortisation of lease prepayments T E B R IEEE 140 140
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET €
— audit services — ZEURTS 3,096 2,234
— non-audit services — IERRBURTS 100 105
. Cost of inventories includes RMB2,865,000 * FERAD RIS TKA
(2009: RMB1,833,000) relating to staff costs and RITER S ARE 2,865,000
depreciation expenses, which amounts are also T(ZETNF: ARK
included in the respective total amounts disclosed 1,833,0007T) * B B L FIH
separately above for each of these types of expenses. BEEAREZERZENR

EXEBRENEEESE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@)

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

Current tax expense BNEAFR IA R 2
- PRC Income Tax — R EFEEL
Deferred tax IRIETHIE
— Origination and reversal of —TREEN
temporary differences HegA A El

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as
these subsidiaries did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year
(2009: Nil).

The provision for the PRC corporate income tax
was based on the statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries which carried on
businesses in the PRC.

126 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@ERADE

8

(@)

FriSHiRIx<
R A 2ERAR 85 5
X -
2010 2009
—g-%F —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETR
127,323 93,211
(2,087) 4,850
125,236 98,061

(i)

RERSHEREBR K
BHENRAINRD - A&
EEBAGMASES MK
BREZEENEAME
B o

HREEHMBRARNER
BEE A ERBEN (=
ZETENEF: E) BAK
B & AEENERIEL
R

RETERMEHRORE =R
A BRI R E B HOKE A
AR FERR B M| 25% B
EREEH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %332 Mt

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8

(@)

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(iv)  Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC, 5% withholding tax is levied on the
foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign investment enterprise’s
profits earned after 1 January 2008. As at 31
December 2010, temporary withholding tax
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of PRC subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB208,433,000 (2009: RMB97,012,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB10,422,000 (2009:
RMB4,851,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

Profit before tax BrBE A Al

Notional tax on profit before tax, KAEARETERN
calculated at the applicable tax rate  BREL AT FI K2 & Fi 18

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEZFRBWAZ BT E

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1~ B] FIE B 32 2 Bl 165 57 £

Actual income tax expense ERERAS

FREHmx (&)

(@)

(b)

RiFEE2EBARNAEHFE
Xt (&)

(iv)

BB EERMSRE
SN B E AR INI IR E
TERZZTENF—A—
H 1& BRER A9 5 1) i 22 A /9
B B9 Ik H2 B 28 5% #5 4F
BHH - R=ZZT—FF
+=—A=+—8"' 5%
FENE AR
K F ER R AR = £
% & A R 208,433,000
T(ZEZENE : AR
97,012,0007C ) ° AR A&
NRIEEZENB A RN
REBKREEERER
BETERAITERRRAD
DI | IR L A 3 S
ZEREBRNAZ B
ERER AR 10,422,000
T(ZZEZNF : AR
4,851,000 7T ) KR IE R I8
afE -

WERRERFRE ZABHRAX
SEtEN B

2010 2009
—2-2F “—TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

501,888 227,564
141,731 85,536
(20,644) =

4,149 12,525
125,236 98,061
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Business combination

On 26 February 2010, a subsidiary of the Company, Datong
Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd.
(“Datong Jinfa”), obtained control of Shanxi Hun Yuan Ruifeng
Coal Company Limited (“Ruifeng Coal”) by acquiring 87.88%
of the equity interest in Ruifeng Coal for a consideration of
RMB130,000,000.

Ruifeng Coal was the owner and operator of a coal mine
in Hun Yuan County, Datong City, Shanxi Province, China.
During the period from the acquisition date to 31 December
2010, Ruifeng Coal was still in pre-operating stage. Therefore,
no revenue was generated by Ruifeng Coal and the loss
during that period was RMB4,700,000. If the acquisition has
occurred on 1 January 2010, management estimates that
the consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 December
2010 would have been RMB6,455,805,000, and consolidated
profit for the year would have been RMB376,085,000. In
determining these amounts, management has assumed that
the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of acquisition
would remain the same even if the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2010.

128 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@EBERADE
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kg —EH B2 F

EBast

RZZE—FTF-_F=-+/,"H ' AAF
MEBARAKRMBREEHEHEAR
AERI(ARAEEDBBUREBEAR
#% 130,000,000 7T 42 B8 7 1L PR & R B
REEXERETRA([HRAKE])
87.88% ) 1 2 J& BY I 2 B 3 A 2
T o

ImE SRR RS A B PE
BAARRATERGH —BEERE - PRI
A2 ZF+_A=+—HH
M ImEEREDENTREE SRR o il
T [ B 3 30 4 EE A MR A - B HR
WE B A AR ¥ 4,700,000 7T ° fifi i
BR-_Z—ZTF—A—HB%LE &
BEGHREBEE=ZZE—ZF+=A
=+—HAILEFEHFREKRABBARE
6,455,805,000 7T * 1 & PIARE i A1)
A AR #376,085,0007T ° FAE E %
ZHEN  EEECRRAFELER
—E—TF-A—HBFELE RKEA
EERNRREFAREDAER o



Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 9 WE—REKREARE)
Fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities PUEE BB T R B E RRIERE
assumed as of the acquisition date: ZARE
Note RMB’000
BisE AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment L E YN L] 15 24,543
Intangible assets | EE 16 210,659
Inventories FE 176
Trade and other receivables JEUWE 5 BR R K E A FE U ROR 4,850
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 655
Other liabilities HtgE (26,253)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE 20 (48,992)
Total net identifiable assets AR EEFRAE 165,638
Bargain purchase gain (BB AW
Bargain purchase gain has been recognised as a result of the WS Bm=EE AR RN
acquisition as follows: s 8
RMB’000
ARET T
Total consideration transferred EERERE 130,000
Non-controlling interests, based on IR R - TR
their proportionate interest R U HE 77 B RERR
in the recognised amounts of the assets BEMAGESEN
and liabilities of the acquiree AT E 20,075
Less: value of net identifiable assets B AR BEFE (165,638)
Bargain purchase gain EEB ARG (15,563)
The bargain purchase gain is mainly attributable to the increase EEBAMGETEARNEERRERS
in the value of the coal mine exploitation rights, as a result of BLEAMS RAAWBTEEESYAE
the increase in market price of coal during the period from the HAZ U BE B EREAR SR OB LR -
date at which the purchase contract was agreed upon to the HEBARZNEMBAFRER(Z
acquisition date. The bargain purchase gain was recognised in FIMIEE6) ©

other income (see Note 6).
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10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 EZEE
Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: EEME 2FFBOT ¢

Salaries,
allowances  Contri-

and butions to Share-
benefits retirement based
inkind  benefit Discre- payment 2010
Directors’ EZ&H& . schemes tionary NG Total

fee  EER RIEA bonuses Sub-total AEW —Z-FF
ESHe BYREFN AR BERA U0 A E @5t
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Name of directors EENF ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTT AR%TR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HTES

Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”) HREELRE(HR%EED - 1,826 6 3608 5440 - 5440
Ms. Wang Jianfei TRIfLL - 1,400 6 3608 5014 - 5014
Ms. Liu Xiaomei 2Bt - 475 6 11 492 224 716
Mr. Weng Li 8 Uk4 - 1,000 2 1317 2379 - 2319

Independent non-executive BV FHTES

directors
Mr. Chen Wenjing BR S A

(see note below) (BRI HRE) - - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Guosheng HEBLE 286 - - - 286 - 286
Mr. Liu Xiyuan 2GREE 282 - - - 282 - 282
Mr. Qian Pingfan BFAEE

(see note below) (2B ) - - - - - - -

568 4,701 20 8,604 13,893 224 14117
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10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10 ESHM< (&)
Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: (continued) SEME ZEIBWR - (&)
Salaries,
allowances Contri-
and  butions to Share-
benefits  retirement based
in kind benefit Discre- payment 2009
Directors’  £A%% +  schemes tionary PR Total
fee  EEIR ENBF  bonuses Subtotal  AERE —TTHE
e BEWEN SRR BERA U1 A Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors Bz ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Xu (s — 793 6 1,000 1,799 - 1,799
Ms. Wang Jianfei TRzt - 662 6 1,000 1,668 - 1,668
Ms. Liu Xiaomei St - 300 6 100 406 180 586
Mr. Weng Li 8 UEHE — 462 2 500 964 - 964
Independent non-executive BV FH{TES
directors
Mr. Chen Wenjing B A - - - - - - -
(see note below) (2B )
Mr. Huang Guosheng iy 129 - - - 129 = 129
Mr. Liu Xiyuan 2GREE 127 - - - 127 = 127
256 2,217 20 2,600 5,093 180 5,273

Mr. Chen Wenjing resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 21 June 2010, and agreed to waive all
of his directors’ fee amounted to RMB135,000 during the year.
In 2009, Mr. Chen Wenjing agreed to waive all of his directors’
fee amounted to RMB129,000.

Mr. Qian Pingfan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 20 September 2010. He
agreed to waive any directors’ fee throughout the term of his
appointment.

There were no amounts paid during the year (2009: Nil) to the
directors in connection with their retirement from employment
with the Group, or inducement to join.

PR ERHEB M IEITES - I
BE-Z—ZF A=+ —HRBER
BEREREEFAMAEBEARKE
1350002 EEHE - RZEZT N
FBRXBEERENEEMASRE
AR# 129,000 2 EEWE ©

BENEER=ZZT—ZTFNLA=1+H
BEZERARNRR B IFRITES -
BRBEREEREEPRRNZEMES
we e

FR - ANRBAEAE EERE

AREBEFRNBRZ IR
BREEE(—FTNF : |) -
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11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 EEFHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year FN - AREREGRRTHZATE
include three directors of the Company (2009: three), whose BEARARIZ=ZREF (=TT NF:
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above. =) EHEMRAESTES - [
Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid REEESRZ=THALTZN 2BE
individuals of the Group are as follows: HIBWE ¢

2010 2009

—EB-FF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and ERFE R
benefits in kind NEWiER 1,517 1,156
Contributions to retirement RIRAEAETBIHETR
benefit schemes 8 13
Discretionary bonuses B IEAL 3,580 588
Share-based payment VARG 10 LR 2 (3R 372 147
5,477 1,904
The emoluments of the two (2009: two) individuals with the ME(ZEZNF : MB)ZagHA
highest emoluments are within the following bands: T2 HMaT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AEL
Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T = -
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 7T - 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 7T = =
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 /87T 2,500,000 78 7T - =
HKD?2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7T 2 3,000,000 7T = =
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7T £ 3,500,000 7T 2 -
There were no amounts paid during the year (2009: Nil) to the FW - AR RN E MR G &= T WE
five highest paid employees in connection with their retirement BXfEMEKEEE AEERKEH
from employment with the Group, or inducement to join. Z A AR NERE (T NF

&) -
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12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 AR FAERSE AEGRF
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of RARERFB AEIGERE R EHE
the Company includes a loss of RMB6,909,000 (2009: loss ERARRMBHMEREEZEBEBAR
of RMB5,307,000) which has been dealt with in the financial #6,009,000 7T (ZZEZTNF : FHIEA
statements of the Company. R#5,307,0007¢) °
13 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 13 HMEmUWA
(@ Tax effects relating to each component of other (@ EH 2 mEU AR EHE KD §
comprehensive income: ML
2010 2009
“E-%% ZENE
Tax Tax
(expense)/ (expense)/
Before-  benefit  Net-of-  Before- benefit ~ Net-of-
tax BE tax tax BB tax

amount (%H)/ amount amount (%t)/  amount
HadE WE BEE HicE s BreE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%ETT ARETL ARBTT ARETL

Foreign currency translation differences  /BANERE A 2 SN

for foreign operations BEESE (24,583) - (24,583) (46) - (46)
Net change in fair value of AR ESREARER
avallable-for-sale financial assets RREEEFE (12,918) - (12918) 12,918 - 12918
Other comprehensive income At 2EEA (37,501) - (87501) 12,872 - 12872
(b)  Reclassification adjustments relating to components of b) Hib2mmU AR DEE
other comprehensive income: o FE T
Available-for-sale financial assets agHHENEREE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
Changes in fair value recognised FANEERN AL EED)
during the year 6,666 12,918
Reclassification adjustments for EREERRNSEEN
amounts transferred to profit or loss 3 4878% (19,584) =

Net movement in the fair value reserve R E M2 EULA
during the year recognised in other &R A EFEE
comprehensive income 2 BE)FE (12,918) 12,918
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB377,222,000 (2009:
RMB129,503,000) and the weighted average number of
1,037,500,000 (2009: 890,616,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Ordinary shares issued at 1 January 7 — A — B2$17E @A

Issuance of shares upon BJHEETRG
the Reorganisation (2 BMI7E 30(b)(i))
(see Note 30(b)(ii))

Effect of capitalisation issue BERLBEITHNE
(see Note 30(b)(ii)) (2 BRI E 30(0)(ii))

Effect of shares issued on Initial BRAREERRMD

Effect of shares issued under the  1BIEH BEAL EHBEE
over-allotment option related to feARE S TR R 2
the placement (see Note 30(b)(v)) (2 B3I FE 30(0)(v))

Weighted average number of W+ A=+—HBrmE

ordinary shares at 31 December TR (HEE

134 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@BERADE
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14 SREFN

(@)

ETHY
Public Offering (see Note 30(b)(iv)) 572 (2RI =E30(0)(v))

SREARH

*”W;<£ZIS&%\JJ3LA¢W$

NRE=FA ARG EMNAR
#377,222,000t( — T & 11
F: A R %129,503,0007T )
KRBT E AR A InAE 195
1,037,500,000 )¢ (=TT N5 :
890,616,000/% ) A& #& + FaT
=R

ZIE MR R IR 39 B
2010 2009
—E-=F —TTNF
Number of Number of
shares shares
gng 4| R E
1,037,500,000 1
- 999,999
- 749,000,000
- 123,972,000
- 16,644,000

1,037,500,000 890,616,000




14

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

Diluted earnings per share

14 SRERN(Z)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based

on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB377,222,000 (2009:
RMB129,503,000) and the weighted average number
of 1,038,300,000 (2009: 890,616,000) ordinary shares

(diluted).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
for the year ended 31 December 2010 is calculated as

follows:

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of Pre-IPO
share options (see Note 28(a))

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December
(diluted)

Rt-A=t+—HZEBRK
I E
RIEER AR E BB

BT Z (2R 28())

W+ =A=+—B2Eak
TR (B )

(b)

FhEE R R

BRESAFNDBEARRQF
EaFEaE AELENARE
377,222,000 7L ( = F J1 4 -
AR #129,5038,0007T) & & @&
% N4 159 251 1,038,300,000 A%

—ZT T4 1 890,616,000 i)

(B H58) 5t -

HE-2-FF+-A=t+-
B AL 2 % BRI 1 5

(BESE)ETEMT -

2010 2009
—2-¥F “ITTNF
Number of Number of

shares shares
R & E gnE !
1,037,500,000 890,616,000
800,000 -
1,038,300,000 890,616,000
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

Cost

At 1 January 2009
Addiions

Disposals

Transfers
Exchange difierence

At 31 December 2009

Addions

Arising from business combinations
(see Note 9)

Disposals

Transfers

Exchange diference

At 31 December 2010

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2009

Charge for the year

Witten back on disposals
Exchange difierence

At 31 December 2009
Charge for the year
Wrtten back on disposals
Bxchange diference

At 31 December 2010

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2010

i

R-FENE-A-R

Al

=5

=
oRF e ||

d@F EE
==

B
= LR
i

EEBAREL
(882

TR

i
g
EXZE
H-2-3F2A=1-A
ZiHE
N-Z2NE-A-H
FRgH

HERE

EiZE
A-EENET-A=T-A
Epgi

HERE

EizE

Ho2-BEH=AzH-R

=23

=

it
KRR AR

g2zt

15 Y% - BEKRRKE

rEH

Electronic Assets

Plant and and other Motor Mining under
buildings ~ Machinery  equipment  vehicles Vessels  structures  construction Total

7R

fiEREF BE  RRE hE Eh HEREN  fEEE a3t
RMBOOO ~ RWBOO0  RWMBOO0O  RWBOOO  RWBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RWBOO
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR
4,176 6,432 2813 17497 721456 - 214968 1,004,341
- 34 Y] 1791 46,450 - 101,452 150,400
- - - - (5,581) - - (5,981)
- - - - 310488 - (310489 -
- - - - (607) - (109 (916)
4,176 6,816 3136 19268 1,072,005 - 5828 1148244
2,065 %0 061 5404 3441 - 51459 527,141
1,162 9,694 64 19 - 6,183 7260 24543
(669) - - (15) - - - (1,078)
9,685 - - - - - (9,685) -
- - - - (13575 - (5,161) (18,736)
53,425 17490 3,861 24467 1,061.871 6,183 512817 1,680,114
(4964) (2558 (1,459) (7,674) (60,009) - - (76,658
2,01) (702 (445) (2,604) (70,366) - - (76,135)
- - - - 675 - - 67
- - - - 105 - - 105
(6,991) (3,260) (1,899 (10218 (129,589) - - (18201
(2432 643 (569) (3,187 (84308 - - (91,139
209 - - 38 - - - 597
- - - - 3682 - - 3682
024 (3903 (2468 (180 Qlo2n) - - (8881
3,185 3556 1287 9,010 942420 - 5828 996,231
4421 13,087 13% 130 851,660 6,183 512817 1441241
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

Cost

At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Additions through business combination
(see Note 9)

At 31 December 2010

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2010
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2010

Intangible assets represent coal mine exploitation rights
of Ruifeng Coal (see Note 9). The amortisation of the coal
exploitation rights is using the units-of-production method
utilising only proved and probable coal reserves in the
depletion base. Up to 31 December 2010, Ruifeng Coal has

not commenced operation.

i
ES

JIA

F

n=

u%%aﬁﬁa

(2BEE9)

16 EFEE

A M

—EEE+_A=+—H

B §

—ETNF— ﬁ B -ZZThF+-A

=t+—BRk=
A

—ZFF—H—H

B2+ _HA=+—H

BREE
—ERNFE+_A=+—H

B2+ _A=+—H

JiN

n=

BV EERRRARE 2 REFRRE

(2BIMEE9) - KEFRAREEEMRR

S 285 A Pk

Coal mine
exploitation
rights

IR ERAE
RMB’000
ARETTT

210,659

210,659

B R AR AR IR A AR B ZE R

B AEXTAMSE HE—T—
F+-A=+—H

= o
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17 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 HEBEGRE
The Group REE
Sea Land
use rights use rights Total
BEE AR i fE AR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Cost B%N
At 1 January 2009, RZZZNF-A-R-
31 December 2009 and “EENFT_A=T—BR
1 January 2010 —Z-T5-H—H - 6,998 6,998
Additions NE 45,971 - 45,971
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-—ZF+_A=1—H 45,971 6,998 52,969
Accumulated amortisation EHE £
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—A—H - (805) (805)
Charge for the year FAZ M - (140) (140)
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNFET-A=1—H = (945) (945)
Charge for the year FAZ - (140) (140)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-TF+-A=1—H - (1,085) (1,085)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2009 RZEENFT-A=t—H - 6,053 6,053
At 31 December 2010 RZZ—TF+-_A=t—-H 45,971 5,913 51,884
Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights and sea MEFENRIEER L AHEERH A50
use rights in respect of land and sea located in the PRC, both F R B 4t RO S ) T A R
with a lease period of 50 years at the date of grant. Sea use B ERERE c REER =T —F
rights were granted to the Group on 28 September 2010. FNA T N\BERSEFERRE -
18 OTHER INVESTMENTS 18 HMRE
The Group rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR®ETT

Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRHEE - 30,390
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38 3% Mt 51

OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

The available-for-sale financial assets represent the equity
interests held by the Group in Tiaro Coal Limited (“Tiaro Coal”),
a company incorporated in the State of New South Wales
in Australia with its shares listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange. The fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets was measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets. The Group acquired additional interests in
Tiaro Coal on 23 April 2010 and the available-for-sale financial
assets were deemed disposed of and reacquired at fair value
on the date of obtaining significant influence in Tiaro Coal in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy (see Note 19).

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE

The Group

On 283 April 2010, the Group increased its equity interest in
Tiaro Coal from 14.09% to 30.05% through an acquisition of
8,000,000 new ordinary shares in Tiaro Coal. In November
2010, Tiaro Coal issued 10,000,000 new ordinary shares to
new shareholders, whereby the Group’s equity interest in Tiaro
Coal was diluted to 26.35%.

Listed shares, at cost

Share of loss FE(L B 1R
Exchange difference ME 5 5

B RE R

Less: impairment loss

LR - ERAE

18

19

HitiRE& ()

AEfHECHREREASERAE X
RN EEBE LA MK LA R]
Tiaro Coal Limited ([ Tiaro Coal]) (£
IR TERINE FR Z T L) BRHE -
AEHESREERAERTISR
BRERAR)FE - AEBR=_Z—
TP A =+ =HUYEE Tiaro Coal Z
HIMER - BREBEASENRETEER -
A & B E B AR A PAEE Tiaro
Coal EAFZNERRANBELER
BHUREE (ZEIMIFE19) ©

RBELT2RE

FEE

R-ZE—TFMA-_+=H  ~&EE
i% 38 U B8 Tiaro Coal #98,000,000 A&
FEBEMK - B Tiaro Coal FRR#EH
14.09% 12 INZE30.05% c R=—F—=
F+— A - Tiaro Coal RIFTAX B 31T
10,000,000 B & AR - Btk AN & E
A Tiaro Coal B A #E#H5 = 26.35% °

2010
=i

RMB’000
AR®BTR

2009
—ETNF
RMB’000
ARETIT

48,207 -
(1,922) -
(1,156) -

45,129 =

45,129 =
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19 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 19 REEQT2RE(E)

Summary financial information on Tiaro Coal: B 8 Tiaro Coal I 5B R E

At 31 December 2010
R-Z2—-Z2F+=-A=+—H

Assets Liabilities Equity
'E afE s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT

100 percent 100% 76,135 (1,265) 74,870
Group’s effective interest REEKERER 20,061 (333) 19,728
During the period from the acquisition date to 31 December BlEBEHEZE - -—ZFF+=H
2010, Tiaro Coal incurred a loss of RMB6,581,000, resulting in =+—BHIE - Tiaro CoalE4AEHE A
a loss shared by the Group of RMB1,922,000 for that period. K#®6,581,0007T - R ANEE D 1E%

HARS 1B AR5 1,922,000 7T °

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 20 RESBMBRRKRIAEHR
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group REH
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of @ RERE B RS AR 3R A BN AR AR 18
financial position represents: 1 :
2010 2009
—E-ZF T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREF T
Balance at beginning of the year FXEEER 167,578 57,658
Provision for income tax for the year — fE RS Fi B 127,323 93,211
Income tax refunded during the year & RR BRI FT5EL - 24,835
Income tax paid during the year FRZTHFTEEL (85,568) (8,126)
Balance at the end of the year FaRiEeR 209,333 167,578
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20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 20 RESMBRRRHABHR(Z)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets (o) ELEFHIBEE
Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of RZE—ZFF  AEEEER
the deferred tax assets during 2010: HEERIE S E R &
Credited/
(charged)
to consolidated
statement of
comprehensive
At income At
1 January FAGZE 31 December
2010 2EBAR/ 2010
R-E-2E& (BRE2E R-E-ZF
—A—H BAFRAR) TZA=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R AR%T R
Deferred tax assets arising from: EL£RTFI&EN
BEREEE
Taxable losses carried forward FEENERTSE - 3,240 3,240
Unrealised profit arising from S EE VNG|
intra-group transactions elimination [ 5 &+
MARZEET 6,561 (1,153) 5,408
6,561 2,087 8,648
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20 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 20
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o) Deferred tax assets (continued)

Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of
the deferred tax assets during 2009:

REGEMBRRERNAER ()

b) EEHREE(E)

R-TBNEF  ALBO®RR
BT BEE R R AT

Credited/
(charged)
to consolidated
statement of
comprehensive
At income At
1 January FARERE 31 December
2009 WAR/ 2009
RZZTENF (BEZEZ2E RZEZNE
—H—H W) +-A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT
Deferred tax assets arising from: E4£R T HIZEH
BEHEEE
Utiisation of write-down of inventories &7 SHUR 7,746 (7,746) -
Unrealised profit arising from HE RN AT
intra-group transactions elimination ~ FERX 5 ME4~
HARZIET 3,665 2,896 6,561
11,411 (4,850) 6,561

(c) Deferred tax liabilities

At 31 December 2010, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB48,992,000 were recognised in respect of the
revaluation surplus arising from business combination
(see Note 9).
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 RAMBARNKRE
2010 2009
—2-%F —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRRG - LKA E 658,807 658,807

MNZE—TE+=-A=+—1 "  &A
AR T OB A R A B k&R
= FTEMNEBRRHABIARE] ° %
ZHBARMFBEERSOT

As at 31 December 2010, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
companies. The particulars of these subsidiaries are set out
below:

Proportion of ownership interest

HERERER LA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital
Name of company R s AEE HELQT H kS ERTREE ~ Principal activities
NGIEEE PR AL B B FE OQREAE - TEXHB
Super Grace British Virgin 100% - 100% USD50,000/ Goods transport
Enterprises Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
(“Super Grace”) RBELEHS 50,0003%7T, and charter hire
Super Grace Enterprises 50,000 %7T 73 n & 8 R M
Limited ([ Super NEEREE
Grace )
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% - UsD4,801/ Investment
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands USD50,000 holding
REREBFR AT REBRZHSE 4,801 %5,/ REZR
(TRERE D) 50,000% 7T
Oriental Wise British Virgin 100% = 100% usD1/ Goods transport
Group Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
(“Oriental Wise”) Y egicd ) 1%7m/ and charter hire
Oriental Wise Group 50,000 %7 P AR & B R W
Limited ([ Oriental NEEREE
Wise |)
Qinfa Chartering Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% uSD1/ Goods transport
(“Qinfa Chartering”) Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
Qinfa Chartering Limited RBRLHS 1%7w,/ and charter hire
([Qinfa Chartering J) 50,0007 & &8
AR EwmEE
Qinfa Shipping British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport
Group Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
(“Qinfa Shipping HBREAHS 1%m,/ and charter hire
Group”) 50,000 % 7T i i R
Qinfa Shipping Group AR EHEE
Limited ([ Qinfa
Shipping Group )
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21

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21

Proportion of ownership interest

mERERER LA
Place of Group’s Held by
establishment/ effective the Held by a
incorporation interest Company subsidiary
Name of company B3 EEff AEE BHAAF F B
DNEEE PRI 2 B R KB 2QERE
Bright Rock British Virgin 100% = 100%
Holdings Limited Islands
(“Bright Rock”) RBREZHES
Bright Rock
Holdings Limited
([ Bright Rock |)
Yuen Hoi Limited British Virgin 100% - 100%
(“Yuen Hoi”) Islands
Yuen Hoi Limited RBRIHS
(M'Yuen Hoil)
Hong Kong Qinfa British Virgin 100% = 100%
Coal Trading Limited Islands
(“Qinfa Coal Trading’) ~ EEBEZES
Hong Kong Qinfa
Coal Trading Limited
([Qinfa Coal Trading|)
Harbour Well Limited British Virgin 100% - 100%
(“Harbour Well”) Islands
Harbour Well Limited HBRIHS
(IHarbour Well])
Merit Sino International British Virgin 100% = 100%
Limited (“Merit Sino”) Islands
BERRARAR RBELHS
3]
Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong 100% = 100%
Trading Limited BB
(“Qinfa Trading”)
ERRBEIER
RA([REES])
Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong 100% = 100%
Shipping Limited BA
(“Qinfa Shipping”)
BERREME
BRATR]
(M=EHE D)

144 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@BERADE

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital
ERITREE
S ER

USD1/
USD50,000
IE 4
50,000 7T

USD1/
USD50,000

1%,/
50,000 7T

USD1/
USD50,000
1558,/
50,000 7T

USD1/
USD50,000

1%,/
50,000 7T

USD1/
USD50,000

1%,/
50,000 7T

HKD30,000,000/
HKD30,000,000
30,000,0007& 7T,/
30,000,000 7T

HKD10,000/
HKD10,000
10,0007,
10,000 7T

REBLRNRE (2)

Principal activities

EREK

Investment
holding
BEZR

Investment
holding
REPR

Not yet
commenced
operation
REAIAEE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
& &8 X
AR EwmEE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
8 i X
AR EwmHEE

Sales of coal and
investment holding
BREIREHE K
REER

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
[EE L)L
AR EwmEE
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21

Name of company

DR EB

Liberal City Limited
(“Liberal”)

Liberal City Limited
(MLiberal|)

Perpetual Goodluck
Limited (“Perpetual”)

Perpetual Goodluck
Limited ([ Perpetual])

Hong Kong Qinfa
International
Trading Limited
(“Qinfa International”)
ERREERE S
BRAH
(TREBE )

Qinhuangdao
Development Zone
Qinfa Trading
Co., Ltd.
(“Qinhuangdao
Trading”)
BH5RRAR
([RESES])

Datong Jinfa
ARIEH

Yangyuan Guotong
Coal Trading and
Transportation Co.,
Ltd. (“Yangyuan
Guotong”)

5 [ B 38 R PR
BRAE
(M5 REm )

Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading”)
WEREEFHERNA
(HKEREES])

Place of

establishment/
incorporation

3L/ SR
FR L3t 26

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&

The PRC
H

The PRC
G

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

Proportion of ownership interest

HERERER LA
Group’s Held by

effective the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary
AEE HAEAQH 2] 0
BERES BB ARER
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

RIBLARNRE ()

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital
ERITREE
EfER

HKD1,000/
HKD1,000
1,000 7T,/
1,000 7T

HKD1,000/
HKD1,000
1,000t
1,000 7T

HKD10,000/
HKD10,000
10,0007,/
10,000 7T

RMB68,000,000/
RMB68,000,000
AER# 68,000,000 7T,
AR # 68,000,000 7T

RMB8,000,000/
RMB8,000,000
AR 8,000,000,
AR 8,000,000 7T

RMB10,000,000/
RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T,
ARHE 10,000,000 7T

RMBS5,000,000/
RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,000 7T,
AR 5,000,000 7T

Principal activities

EREK

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
o miE R R
UEREHmHEE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
&R MR
AR EREE

Sales of iron ore

BREAHE

Sales of coal

BEIRSHE

Sales of coal
iRy E

Sales of coal
R IHE

Sales of coal
BEREHE
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21 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RHBARNKRE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
HEREERLA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company AL AEE BHAELATH H S BRTREE Principal activities

NE BB PR AL 2 BERES BB ARER & FEEK

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 100% = RMB5,000,000/ Goods transport
Shipping Co., Ltd. i RMB5,000,000 and logistics,
(“Zhuhai Qinfa AR# 5,000,000, and charter hire
Shipping”) AR 5,000,000 7T [EEEE L

WEREMBEAR AR AR EwmEE
(MREREmE])

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 100% - HKD20,000,000/ Warehousing and
Logistics Co., Ltd. ) HKD20,000,000 transportation
(“Qinfa Logistics”) 20,000,000 7T,/ service

WERBEMRARAR) 20,000,000 75 B R EH R
(T=%mR))

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 100% - RMB1,000,000/ Not yet
Resource e RMB1,000,000 commenced
Development A% 1,000,0007T, operation
Co., Ltd. AR 1,000,000 RFIIREE
(“Zhuhai Resource”)

WERERR
BRARAR
(MREREIR])

Baotou Danghui The PRC 100% = RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Materials Trading H RMB10,000,000 IR EHE
Co., Ltd. AR#10,000,0007%,

(“Baotou Danghui”) ABR# 10,000,000 7T

BEMEENE
B HERAT
(IEEER])

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 60% - RMB77,859,040/ Terminal
Port Co., Ltd. =) RMB519,000,000 construction
(“Zhuhai Port”) AR 77,859,040 7T,/ and operation

KBREB AR 519,000,0007T Tl
BRAHA HiE
(MEREEH )

Ruifeng Coal The PRC 87.88% = RMB17,000,000/ Coal mining

IR 3 ey RMB17,000,000 and operation

AE# 17,000,000, HEIR SR
AE# 17,000,000 7T HiE

Ordos Dongsheng The PRC 100% - RMB5,000,000/ Not yet
Yifa Materials =) RMB5,000,000 commenced
Co., Ltd. AR¥ 5,000,000, operation
(“Ordos Yifa”) AR # 5,000,0007C REAIAEE

SDERZ T R =
FEYMEFRAF]

([SBRRZ AR ])
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RAKBARNKRE(Z)

Proportion of ownership interest

HERERER LA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company L AEE BHAELQTH H S BRTREE, Principal activities

NGIEEE PR LI B BERES KB ODREHE BN TEXH

Ordos Jinfa Materials The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd. =) RMB10,000,000 holding
(“Ordos Jinfa”) AR#10,000,000 7T,/ BEER

SRLHTT & AR ¥ 10,000,000 7T
MEERAE]

(IS8R ZEnEE])

Shuozhou Guangfa The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Energy Investment i RMB10,000,000 holding
Co., Ltd. AE#10,000,000 7T, REER
(“Shuozhou Guangfa’) AR # 10,000,000 7T

BN EZRLR
REABRAR
(MM EE D)

Shenchi Shenda The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/ Not yet
Energy Investment i RMB10,000,000 commenced
Co., Ltd. A% 10,000,000, operation
(“Shenchi Shenda”) AER# 10,000,000 7T RAHEE

1t SRR AL IR
REABRRAR
(MesthidE |)

Shenchi Shenfa Coal The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/ Not yet
Trading and =) RMB10,000,000 commenced
Transportation AR#10,000,0007t,” operation
Co., Ltd. A% 10,000,000 7T RFE=E
(“Shenchi Shenfa”)

TSR R R
BIHER AR
(M5t ieEs ])

Zhungeer Banner Qinfa The PRC 55.5% = 55.5% RMB10,000,000/ Not yet
Huazhun Logitics =) RMB10,000,000 commenced
Co., Ltd. AR#10,000,00070,” operation
(“Huazhun Logistics”) AE# 10,000,000 7T KA EE

ERBEREE YR
BRAH
(rEgEwRl)
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22 INVENTORIES 2 FE

The Group INEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Finished goods BURK in 191,383 244,622
Goods in transit ErEY 328,807 103,247
Fuel AR 7,291 10,255
527,481 358,124

T

The inventories as at 31 December 2010 were stated at cost FER-_ZE—ZFF+_A=+—H
(same as at 31 December 2009). ERAVNE(E-_ZEZTNF+ A
=+—HB#ER) -
23 DERIVATIVES 23 fT4&IA
The Group AEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —TENF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE =l

RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARBTT ARETE

Foreign exchange option ~ JNEHIEE4)

contracts (see Note (i) (2 RMEE() 911 - = =
Non-deliverable Forward PR HR
(“NDF”) portfolio (TR M=ER )
contracts (see Note (i) HEABH (ZHIMTEE i) 3,314 - = -
Forward freight agreements  &&H & s
(see Note (i) (2 BT (i) - (211) - -
4,225 211) - -
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23 DERIVATIVES (continued)

U)

Foreign exchange option contracts

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had four
outstanding foreign exchange option contracts signed
with an authorised financial institution (2009: Nil). These
contracts will expire within 16 months after 31 December
2010.

The Group has recorded a realised income of
RMB2,532,000 in other income. Fair value changes
of the above outstanding foreign exchange option
contracts as at 31 December 2010 were RMB911,000
and were recognised in other income.

NDF portfolio contracts

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had eight
outstanding NDF portfolio contracts signed with
an authorised financial institution (2009: Nil). These
contracts will expire within four months after 31
December 2010.

The Group has recorded a realised loss of RMB419,000
in other expenses. Fair value changes of the above
outstanding NDF portfolio contracts as at 31 December
2010 were RMB3,314,000 and were recognised in other
income.

23

FTETAR(E)
() SNEHRESLY

(i)

RZE—ZTF+=_RA=+—
H - ANEBE¥ES MM ECRE
CRKBEZO W RBEITINE
HEGHN(ZZEZNF &) -
ZEAHEN _E-—TE+—
A=+—R%&1+~MEAREE] -

REBEHFSEMBANEER
WA AR 2,532,0007T ° A=
T-TF+_A=+—H L
MR BITINE BifE & 9B 2
EE8) s AR 911,0007T + I
REMUA R FER o

PRYGERBEEH

R-B—ZF+-_H=+—
B ANEEEE )\ ELEE
TREBRZENHREITTR
WEHHEEEHN(ZFETNF
&) ZEAHBR_T—FF
tT-A=+—H®&REEAAREZ
HA o

AEBEZSEMAITHNEER
EE AR 4190007 - R
—BFE+-A=+—H ki
RAEBITTIRWEIABEEHH
N EEE) A AR 3,314,000
UG+ MR E AR AR RERR ©
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23 DERIVATIVES (continued)

(i)  Forward freight agreements

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had three
outstanding forward freight agreements (2009: Nil) which
would expire in March 2011.

The Group has recorded a realised loss of RMB704,000
in other expenses. Fair value changes of the above
outstanding forward freight agreements as at 31
December 2010 were RMB211,000 and were
recognised in other expenses.

24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

STETAR(E)
(iy EEHEH

T-TE+-A=+—
REEEA=HERET
SEREHBR(—BBAF:
) BEARBR=B——

=RAEm -

m %
|

A

H

REBESFSEMAZHEER
BB AR 704,0007T c R=Z
—ZTFE+_A=Z+—HBFEH
RETEERERZENAAE
FEha AR 211,000 @ R
HAeUWAFER -

24 REWEZERRRHEMERTE

The Group The Company
AEE UG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-B% “ZTNE —E-2f% “TTNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETT AREFL
Trade debtors and bills B E Z K

receivable (see Note (i) EUEE
(2B () 1,026,229 565,451 - -

Prepayment for investments BRERAR
(see Note (i) (2 BAMEE (i) 1,300,000 169,320 - -
Deposits and prepayments Be RBHAR 483,131 556,358 945,041 800,551
Other non-trade receivables HibIEE 5 MR 84,081 58,703 = 48
2,893,441 1,349,832 945,041 800,599

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year. The Group’s exposure to credit
and currency risks related to trade and other receivables is
disclosed in Note 31.
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24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

U)

Trade debtors and bills receivable included bank
acceptance bills of RMB70,057,000 as at 31 December
2010 (2009: RMB41,687,000), which have been

discounted to banks.

An ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
(net of impairment for bad and doubtful debts) of the

Group is as follows:

Within 1 month

Over 1 month but
less than 3 months

Over 3 months but
less than 6 months

—fEAR

—fER AL
BAEE=1EA
=fERAE
1B B /< fE A

Credit terms granted to customers ranged from O to 30
days depending on the customer’s relationship with the
Group, their creditworthiness and settlement record.

24 RWEZRARHMERIR(E)

U)

RZE—ZTF+_A=+—
A BREZERREKREE
BIEE MIRITR IR BRI T A,
= & AR ¥70,057,0007T( =
T NF : AR¥ 41,687,000
JT) °

ANEEE ) e W E 5 BR 2k K e IR
ZR (BB RERRE) MR
BRI

The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREBT T

897,041 501,197
86,056 42,693
43,132 21,561

1,026,229 565,451

AEEREFPRETE=FTX
TENEEY RFFPEAN
SENBEE  HERURMAR
FCERTE
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24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)

Prepayment for investments as at 31 December 2010
represents prepayment for the acquisition of Shanxi
Huameiao Energy Group Co., Ltd. (“Huameiao Energy”).

On 17 November 2010, Shuozhou Guangfa, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an equity interest transfer
agreement (the “Equity Agreement”) with Shanxi Huiyong
Jinyuan Energy Technology Co., Ltd. and other individual
investors of Huameiao Energy (collectively referred to
as the “Huameiao Energy Vendors”). Pursuant to the
Equity Agreement, the Huanmeiao Energy Vendors
agreed to sell their 32% equity interest in Huameiao
Energy to Shuozhou Guangfa at a consideration
of RMB1,600,000,000. As at 31 December 2010,
Shuozhou Guangfa had paid RMB1,300,000,000 of
the total consideration. Up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, this
acquisition is still pending for shareholders’ approval.

Prepayment for investments as at 31 December 2009
represents the prepayment of RMB108,120,000 to
the investors of Ruifeng Coal and the prepayment
of RMB61,200,000 to the investors of Ordos Bayin
Mengke Nayuan Coal Co., Ltd. (“Nayuan Coal”) for the
respective acquisitions. The acquisition of Ruifeng Coal
was completed by the Group on 26 February 2010 (see
Note 9). The acquisition of Nayuan Coal was terminated
on 19 July 2010 and the prepaid consideration of
RMB129,000,000, including further payment of
RMB67,800,000 in 2010, was fully refunded to the
Group in August 2010.

25 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Bank deposits of RMB951,807,000 as at 31 December 2010
(2009: RMB1,037,328,000) were pledged to banks to secure
certain of the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 27).
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24 RWEZRIARHEMERIR(E)

25

(i)

RZE—ZFF+_A=+—8H
M E BN BB IL PREESE
Bep REEBR AR ([FEXER
BER ) MTERIER

RZE—ZF+—F+tH"
SN EZE(KRRHBAR)
3 ||| FHFE 5k & R A TR 5 i 7 BR
EEQARIMEZRERNEA
AAZEE(GBEAIFEEXR
BERE A DRI REEER
= ([ RiEwZE ] - BRIERER
Mo EXRGEREHREUR
B A R #1,600,000,000 7T [A]
AN E S B EE B AEIR32%
K- R =T —ZFF+ =1
=+—H \MNEZRE XML
K&+ A R # 1,300,000,000
e BEARKRMTIER - M
WS BRI EHRLAE ©

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H
IR ETENFIER S B WM
WmRKENREESITARKE
108,120,000 7T K 78 1~ 5 K2 [71 5B
RMEAMEZRRNRERE
BREMER A ([WREX | BIEE
HY 1 AR#61,200,0007THFE
N REBR -_ZT—ZTF—
A =475 B FE R U I R 5
(2EIMIFE9) o WBB AR Ik
—E-ZEFEA+AHEKIL:
B HE A R 129,000,000 70
(BRIZ—ZSFNE—THARK
AR #67,800,00070) R =—F—
TENRBERETAERE o

EEFER

—E—FTF+-_F=+—H " R17F
AR #951,807,000c( =T A,
F : AR¥1,037,328,0007T) B 1
FEBRITIEALASEE TRITEE
RIE(R (2BKd7E27) »
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Deposits with banks within
three months of maturity
Cash at bank and in hand

R=EARES
R
PERTERS

RERREEEY

@ RELBASFEVERE:

The Group The Company

XEE NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%F CEINF CE-¥F CTEAS
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT ARBT T ARETT
- 21,472 - -
287,161 354,715 854 1,324
287,161 376,187 854 1,324

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated

from/(used in) operations:

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:
Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of lease prepayments
Net finance costs
Gain from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Net gain on derivatives
Bargain purchase gain
from business combination
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses
Share of loss of associate

Changes in working capital:
Change in inventories

Change in trade and other receivables

Change in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

BR A A a2 A

gL NGB IREL AR |

mE - BER
BEE
T ETR( HORM 8
RS A R
A E R
& s
$7 TS5
AR
SR NS
B AR
REBHITHR
it ATE
EEESRE
FERE
MR 5B R A
b
B R R
HABEH R

REEHESE
(FPR)WHRE

b BHAZNEEEFTHE

& (BT B & 2 HER
2010 2009
—®-8F —TINF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR®T T AREFIT
501,888 227,564
15 91,139 76,135
17 140 140
7(@) 52,062 30,057
(19,584) -
23 (5,423) -
(15,563) -
7(0) 2,522 2,090
19 1,922 -
(169,181) (280,411)
(477,324) (757,122)
389,726 289,081
352,324 (412,466)
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27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 27 BRKEE
The Group
REEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR®T T AREFIT
Current BN HA
Secured bank loans and bank advances BIEMIRITER
MERITER (i) 2,660,646 1,912,238
Bank advances under discounted AR EEE T
bills receivable HIERITERR (i) 70,057 41,687
Current portion of non-current JERNER A HEARIRT
secured bank loans EFHBNEE (i) 143,987 59,888
2,874,690 2,013,813
Non-current JEENER
Secured bank loans BHEMIRITERK (i) 735,321 231,924
3,610,011 2,245,737
()  Current bank loans and bank advances carried interest () BVERER T E R RIR1TBFIRN T

at rates ranging from 1.05% to 6.13% (2009: 0.83%
10 4.86%) per annum. Current secured bank loans and
bank advances were secured by the following assets:

Note
b
Property, plant and equipment M~ BE RE
Inventories BE
Trade debtors and bills receivable K E SRR R EWER
Pledged deposits EERFR

RMB259,991,000 of the current secured bank loans and
bank advances were guaranteed by a related party (see
Note 34(b)) in addition to being secured by above assets.

Unutilised bank facilities secured by pledged deposits for
the Group were RMB506,062,000 as at 31 December
2010 (2009: RMB702,723,000).
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1.05%£6.13%( = T T N, F:
0.83% = 4.86% ) K FI| 5T & Bl
HE IR RITE R S RIT R T A

T EEER/ER
The Group
REEE
2010 2009
—8-8F -"TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREETTT

779,689 387,446
160,267 101,400
195,468 171,494
951,807 1,037,328

BREFREEEBIIN ARE
259,991,000 K ENEA B HRIBIR1TE
A SRITRRIE—RRIE T ER (2
HMMIFE34(0)) °

R-ZZE—ZTF+-A=+—H &
SEERBERAEROAS AR
TEE A AR 506,062,000 7T (=
TTHF - AREET702,723,0000T) ©
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27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(i)

(i)

The Group’s discounted bank acceptance bills with
recourse have been accounted for as collateralised
bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the
Group’s “Trade debtors and bills receivable” and “Bank
advances under discounted bills receivable” as at the
reporting date.

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December
2010 were pledged by fixed assets with carrying
amounts of RMB235,026,000 (2009: RMB263,927,000)
and the Group’s equity interest in Huameiao Energy and
guaranteed by a related party (see Note 34(b)).

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December
2010 carried one of the following variable interest rates:
(i) the LIBOR plus 1%, (ii) 10% discount on the per annum
interest rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China in
respect of three-year borrowings and (i) 30% up on the
per annum interest rate quoted by the People’s Bank
of China in respect of five-year borrowings (2009: (i) the
LIBOR plus 1% and (i) 10% discount on the per annum
interest rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China in
respect of three-year borrowings).

The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as
follows:

27 BRRES(E)

(i)

(i

AEBBRIRRITAN BB RN
SHREARIIREEMRITRAR -
RIER - AEE[REESERK
FEUER IR | I [BEZREWCRIE T iR
TRF | BEERERREERFAE
SRS TR

RZZT—ZTF+=A=+—08 " ¥k
BIHA B KRR TERE UEREEA
A R #235,026,000( —ZEZ A,
& AR¥263,927,0007T) B EE
BERAEBREZREROKRA
Wz T A BKIR I R BRE 5 1A 1R (26
Bi3E 34(0)) °

RZZT—ZTF+=A=+—08 " 3%k
BIHA B 1K 1R ERIT B FITIE T 52 8
FEEEE : () RBERITRIZESRE M
1% » (i) PEARBRITATHR = FHIfE
BEFRTIZ10% & (i) P EARE
TR A F B EFFE £F30%
AE(ZZTAFE : ()RZERTTRIZE
P EMN1% K (i) F BEARBITETHR
=FHU EEBEFRETIF10%5

) o
Ean

AEE K FEANHRITERIL 5
PRAEE :

The Group
rEH

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Within 1 year —FR 143,987 59,888
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —F A ETBBME 240,321 45,352
Over 2 years but less than 5 years MELA BT BBRAF 495,000 186,572
735,321 231,924
879,308 291,812
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions
passed on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted a
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option”)
whereby one executive director and 25 employees of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for shares of
the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO
Option is 8,400,000 shares which were granted on 12
June 2009 with the subscription price of HKD2.52 per
share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Option has a
vesting period of one to three years commencing from
3 July 2009, being the listing date of the shares on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and the options are
exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Company has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the option in cash.
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28

BRSBEEURONBERNNYR

(@

BRAFERE R BRES S
REE-—BRRNR_ZFZTNFRN
At-—RBRENEERESR
RRARRBERRFEEAE
e ((BERARAEENE
PrERTEl]) - B - ARE1 A
HMITEZER2B 2 EERR TR
BAR R HHER o

RIB B R AR SR ERER
B B IR i R B AT (R Al T
217 B9 IR 10 48 21 & 8,400,000
B BER-_ZEHENA
TZHEE REERER
2.52 47T °

BOHRBERRAZEEMNBER
BMEONERERBN S —
E2=F (HRORBERFrH) EH
B -_ZZhEF+LA=HTL
mEBER) REREARN+
FHIRATTE - AR B EE
TREFEME UREBEE
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

(@ Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:
Number of
options
BREHE
Options granted to a director 600,000
—on 12 June 2009
BT -5 ERE
—RZZETNEFAT=A
Options granted to employees 7,800,000
—on 12 June 2009
BT 8 e B
—-RZZETNEFAT=H
Total share options 8,400,000

BREAE

28 BEZGEUROR/ERNMNRK
(%&)

(@) BERAFBEMBRETEI(E)

() CRBRENKRRRES

p(1 N
Contractual life
of options
Vesting conditions RN
SRR BHER
30% on both of the first 10 years
and second anniversary of 104
the Listing Date, 40% on
the third anniversary of
the Listing Date
FHHEBEEBFR
FEZRFHRI0%
L HAE
FB=RER40%
30% on both of the first 10 years
and second anniversary of 104

the Listing Date, 40% on
the third anniversary of the
Listing Date
FTHEBEEBAFR
FEZRFHRI0%
il =R:iEE
FB=RER40%
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

(@)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i)

The number and weighted average exercise

prices of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the EMEARITHE
beginning of the year

Granted during the year FRRiH

Forfeited during the year & R% 4

Exercised during the year & R{T (&

Outstanding at the end  FEA& AT THE
of the year

Exercisable at theend 47 F47{E

of the year

28 REBREEURGAEBENAR
(#)
@ HBERAREERIERETEIE)
(i) BRENZERMNEFY
TEEWT :
2010 2009
“E-EF “ETNE

Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
IE BREHE T fE ElRESE
HKD ’000 shares HKD '000 shares
BT T4 BT Fn
2.52 8,200 - -
- - 2.52 8,400
2.52 200 2.52 200
2.52 - 2.52 -
2.52 8,000 2.52 8,200
2.52 2,400 2.52 -

No share options were exercised during the year

(2009 Nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2010 had an exercise price of HKD2.52 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.5

years. (2009: 9.5 years).
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 REZFEURGAERHLR
(continued) (%)

(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BRARABEFEIRERS(Z)

(ii) Fair value of share options and assumptions (i) WBRENAALERERK

The fair value of service received in return for share P ) B A i USCER 9 AR 75

options granted is measured by reference to the ARE - H2REERH

fair value of share options granted. The estimate BRENAAEE B

of the fair value of the share options granted is REOBEREGTARER

measured based on the Binomial Model. The b= s W = i =

contractual life of the share options is used as = o BRENS LER T

an input into this model. Expectations of early NEXTRARTEE R -

exercise are incorporated into the Binomial Model. RATTENTEHREAAZ

THARR

Granted in June 2009

—EENFRAERE
Fair value at grant date REL BN ARE HKD7,650,000 & 7T
Share price f& (& HKD2.52 78 7T
Exercise price 116 E HKD2.52 /87T
Expected volatility TEHAK 1R 56%
Expected Option life TE HARE AR R EARR 10 years “F
Expected dividend vyield rate TEHRRR B U e = 1.50%
Risk-free interest rate fE [ fa A1) 2 3.029%
The expected volatility and expected dividend TEHRR B) I 7B B A% B Uk a
yield rate are based on the average volatilities KT ERELITE TR
and dividend yield rates in the similar industry. B &g B Es R EITE
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could = KBRS EHE
materially affect the fair value estimate. BERTZERAREMET -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole
shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12 June
2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then has been granted
and have yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in the absence of the shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Unless approved by the
shareholders, no option may be granted to any person
which if exercised in full would result in the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options already granted or to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
share option) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such new
grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year (2009: Nil).
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Trade and bill payables

Other taxes payable
Receipts in advance

Accrued express

Amount due to subsidiaries
Other miscellaneous payables

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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29 BEHEZRIRREAENIE

The Group The Company
TEE AAT

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Zf CZTTHNF CZEBE-EF ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTrT AR%¥®TR ARETET

BB SRR
RENER 477,147 192,251 - =
H At IR 139,961 76,201 = =
TEUFIE 61,217 39,053 - -
FEETFZ 59,151 36,164 - =
FEAST BT /B8 2 B 5RIE - - 383,119 219,502
HAbFEIRFE N SRR 41,024 26,435 2,195 26
778,500 370,104 385,314 219,528

Credit terms granted to the Group by its suppliers ranged from
0 to 30 days. An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of

the Group is as follows:

Within 1 month

Over 1 month but less than 3 months —

Over 3 months but less than 6 months =

BAR

8 A LA
BABEE=1EA
18 A LA E
BAEE7 A

AEBHERR T ASENEEMH
TE=-THALEF - AKEEMNE SR

RRENERAREDITIAT
The Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-8F -TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT T
428,772 190,429
29,638 968
18,737 854
477,147 192,251
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing

balances of each component of the Group’s

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

the Company’s individual components of equity between

the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company
Note
i3

At1 January 2009 R=FENE-A-A
Foreign currency IEREES

translation differences
Avrising from the REfEE

Reorganisation 30(o)i
Capitalisation issue BB 30(b)i)
Issuance of shares by~ EBENDREE

Initial Public Offering ~~ &f3%63 300l
Issuance of shares under REEERENRE

the over-allotment EREETRR

option related to

the placement 30()v)
Share issuing expenses  RHEER
Equity-settled REREENRD

share-based payments  AERH[H 30(c)vil
Loss for the year EfEE
At31December 2000  R=FENET-A=1-H

and 1 January 2010 RZF-T5-f-A
Foreign currency SRS

translation differences
Equity-settled REREENRD

share-based payments  AEEEIE 30(c)vil
Loss for the year EfEE
At 31 December 2010 R=F-SF+=F=1-H
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30 BX - RERRE
(@) HERHOE
REBEEHHGFERER N
H;ﬁiﬂﬁ’]ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéiﬁé%ﬁ?&%
BK o AR AEAERE D RN
FUORFEOEBFFH N
K
PN
Share-based
compensation
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange reserve  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve  ARHBER losses Total
ka RitaE SRR ERfie  ZMeRk ZitFE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETT  ARETR
= = = (407) = = (407)
88 = 668,719 = = = 668,807
66,039 (66,039) - - = - _
22,042 533,429 = = = = 505,411
3,305 79,987 = = = = 83,292
- (62,744) - - - - (62,744)
= = = = 2,090 = 2,090
= = = = = (5,307) (6,307)
91,474 494 633 668,719 (407) 2,090 (6,307) 1,241,202
- - - (17,427) - - (17,427)
= = = = 2522 - 2,522
= = = = = (6,909) (6,909
91,474 494 633 668,719 (17,834) 4612 (12216) 1,219,388
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 30 BEXR - #HERRE(E)
(b)  Share capital (o) B&EAR
The Group and the Company REBRAAT
2010 2009
—E-%F “ETNF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
BRE kix -} ey Gl
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FidzE ARET R AREFTT
Authorised HE

Ordinary shares of SRmEE

HKDO.10 each 010787t
VB (i) 20,000,000,000 1,763,000 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, LBER > #7

issued and fully paid ~R& =

At 1 January W—H—H 1,037,500,000 91,474 1 -
Issuance of new shares R IEEABETHK

pursuant to

the Reorganisation (il - - 999,999 88
Capitalisation issue B R (i - - 749,000,000 66,039
Issuance of shares by~ BBENAH

Initial Public BERT

Offering ®in () - - 250,000,000 22,042
Issuance of shares REBHELEDN

under the over- FHEERAL AR

allotment option related  Z1TR {7

to the placement (v) - - 37,500,000 3,305

1,037,500,000 91,474  1,037,500,000 91,474
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

@M

(i)

(i)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 March 2008 with an authorised share
capital of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000
shares of par value HKDO.10 each. On 4 March
2008, 1 share of par value HKDO.10 in the
Company was allotted, issued and fully paid
to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as
the initial subscriber, which was subsequently
transferred by Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited to Mr. Xu on the same day. On 12 June
2009, Mr. Xu transferred his one share to Fortune
Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”, the
ultimate holding company of the Group).

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, on 12 June 2009,
999,999 shares credited as fully paid were allotted
and issued to Fortune Pearl, in consideration
for the acquisition by the Company of the entire
equity interest of Qinfa Investment, an intermediate
holding company of the Group.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009, the
authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HKD380,000 to
HKD2,000,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 19,996,200,000 shares of HKDO0.10
each.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

(iv)

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009,
749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in
the Company were issued at par value on 3 July
2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the
share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange.

On 3 July 2009, 250,000,000 ordinary shares
of HKDO.10 each were issued at a price of
HKD2.52 per share under the Initial Public Offering
and the International Placing. The proceeds of
HKD25,000,000 (equivalent to RMB22,042,000)
representing the par value, were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HKD605,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB533,429,000), before the issuing expenses,
were credited to the share premium account.

30 EBEX BERRE(E)

(b)
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)  Share capital (continued)

v)

On 22 July 2009, the underwriters of the
International Placing exercised the over-allotment
option for the issuance of 37,500,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each at HKD2.52 per share.
The proceeds of HKD3,750,000 (equivalent
to RMBS3,305,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HKD90,750,000
(equivalent to RMB79,987,000), before the issuing
expenses, were credited to the share premium
account.

(c) Reserves

(i)

(i)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of the Group as at 1 January 2009
represented the aggregate amount of paid-in
capital of the companies comprising the Group
after elimination of investment in subsidiaries.

Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009,
749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in
the Company were issued at par value on 3 July
2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the
share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(©)

Reserves (continued)

(ii)

Share premium (continued)

250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in
the Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share
under the Initial Public Offering on 3 July 2009. The
excess of the proceeds totalling HKD605,000,000
(equivalent to RMB533,429,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares
issued, less certain listing costs of HKD49,562,000
(equivalent to RMB43,699,000) incurred in
connection with the issue of the share capital,
amounting to HKD555,438,000 (equivalent to
RMB489,730,000), were credited to the share
premium account.

An additional 37,500,000 ordinary shares of
HKDO0.10 each in the Company were issued
at HKD2.52 per share on 22 July 2009
pursuant to the over-allotment option related
to the International Placing. The excess of the
proceeds totalling HKD90,750,000 (equivalent
to RMB79,987,000) over the nominal value of
the total number of ordinary shares issued, less
certain listing costs of HKD10,259,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,045,000) incurred in connection
with the issue of share capital, amounting to
HKD80,491,000 (equivalent to RMB70,942,000),
were credited to the share premium account.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

©

Reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium (continued)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium account are
distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve as at 1 January 2009 represents
the difference between the aggregate amount
of paid-in capital of Perpetual, Liberal, Qinfa
Shipping, Qinfa Trading, Qinfa International and
Super Grace and the amount of share capital of
Qinfa Investment, issued to Fortune Pearl on 6
October 2008 in exchange for the entire equity
interests in the above six companies as part of the
Reorganisation.

Merger reserve as at 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010 represents the difference
between the aggregate amount of paid-in capital
of the subsidiaries of the Company and the amount
of share capital of the Company transferred and
issued to Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire
equity interests in all members of the Group as part
of the Reorganisation.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(©)

Reserves (continued)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

Reserves

Reserves were established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of the companies comprising the
Group which are established in the PRC.

Reserves include statutory reserves and
discretionary reserves. For the entity concerned,
statutory reserves can be used to make good
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital
in proportion to the existing equity interests of
investors, provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the reporting date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Notes 2(e) and 2(j).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(d).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents
value of employee services in respect of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Option as set
out in Note 28(a).
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d

Non-controlling interests

In January 2010, Zhuhai Port was established, with
60% equity interest held by the Group and the non-
controlling shareholder made a capital contribution of
RMB31,144,000 (holding 40% equity interest).

In February 2010, the Group acquired 87.88% of the
equity interest in Ruifeng Coal (see Note 9).

In November 2010, Huazhun Logistics was established,
with 55.5% equity interest held by the Group and the
non-controlling shareholder made a capital contribution
of RMB4,450,000 (holding 44.5% equity interest).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of debt to equity ratio.
For this purpose the Group defines debt as total loans
and borrowings and equity as total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(€)

Capital management (continued)

The debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2010 and

2009 was as follows:

Debt to equity ratio BRI RERS b R

Dividends

M

(i)

No final dividend is proposal for the year ended 31
December 2010 (2009: Nil)

Dividends paid to equity shareholders attributable
to the previous year, approved and paid during the
year:

Interim dividend declared and ~ FERE & K& f+F
paid during the year B HAR B

According to the written resolution of the
directors’ meeting passed on 11 June 2009, Qinfa
Trading declared a special interim dividend of
HKD100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,152,000)
to its then equity shareholder. Such dividend was
fully paid on 26 June 2009.
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit risk, interest risk, currency risk and liquidity

risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount.

At the reporting date, the Group had no significant
concentration of credit risk with any of its customers.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
does not provide any guarantee which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, but the
borrowings are subject to approval by the parent
company’s management. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with any lending covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(o)  Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

31

TREREERAAMBEE)

mBEZER (E)

TERFAVNARB ZETESR
BERRE R ZFBRE NI B
B BERHADRE DR
ARERE(BEERA QT

R EZMBMNR

B BIRmE A E R 2 ARG

B)ARAREE A BES

FREEE

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE_Z-ZF+-_A=1—HLEFE

AR &

Total Within one More than one

undiscounted yearor year and less

Carrying cash flow on demand than five years

amount REHR —FRH —F%

REE RenER RER BRER

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR#TR AR¥TR ARBTR

Loans and borrowings BN REE 3,610,011 3,796,395 2,928,591 867,304
Trade and other FERTE SRR

payables RE A BRI 778,500 778,500 778,500 -

4,388,511 4,574,895 3,707,091 867,804

Year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTAEFT_A=1+-BLEE

Total Within one  More than one

undiscounted yearor  yearand less

Carrying cash flow ondemand  than five years

amount REGH —FR% —%%&

FREE HenesR REX BRERA

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Loans and borrowings ERkEE 2,245,737 2,304,571 2,063,649 240,922
Trade and other ERTE SR

payables R EAERBRTR 370,104 370,104 370,104 -

2,615,841 2,674,675 2,433,753 240,922
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans
and borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below:

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s loans and borrowings at the reporting

31 SREREERAARE(E)

(€ FIxER

AEEZNEEBREIERBE
RREE o R M XK EE
MEBAZEEEAREED R
AXBERENERBREAAR
BEMNXEAR BEEEEZ
RER BRI T () -

i) R=ER

TERANAEEZ BRE
RIS A 2 FI -

date:
The Group
A5H
2010 2009
“E-2F ZTENE
\ Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum  Carrying value perannum  Carrying value
ERFI= EHE BRH= FEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AEETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EENZEE
Bank loans IBTER 1.17%-6.13% 2,492,313 0.83%-4.86% 1,842,196
Less: pledged deposits W BEEER 0.86%-25% (951,807)  0.36%-2.25% (1,037,328)
1,540,506 804,868
Variable rate borrowings: EFREE
Bank loans RITER 1.05%-7.75% 1,117,798  1.23%-5.64% 403,541
1,117,798 403,541
Total net borrowings BEFE 2,658,304 1,208,409
Net fixed rate borrowings EENEEERE
as a percentage of hEEETE
total net borrowings MEAL 57.95% 66.61%

174 China Qinfa Group Limited HEZ=ZE@ERDE



Notes to the Financial Statements

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in the interest rates of variable
rate borrowings prevailing at the reporting date,
with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB3,024,000
for the years ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
RMB2,778,000) .

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax and consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at the reporting date. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

31

S 285 A Pk

TREREERAAMBEE)

(@)

ZAlESEN

(i)

Annual Report 2010 =%

2 (48

BRED

R T A H A S SR
B NEE BRI
BEMFEER EH T
FE1001E E B A5t & &
BAEBBE_ZT—F
F+-_A=Z=+—BHLHF
BB %R RRSA
SRR D M AR
#3,024,000L( = T &
NE: AR #2,778,000
TT) ©

PR ELNIEAREE
Zﬁﬁmémﬂéﬁiﬁé%x

BEEAE A& - &
,&E DITIRER A R EFH R
BEADKEL  AEMS
REHFEANKREMFE
W R B 07 & B
MERBRIETESET
B o REBZRBE G
HiR A m L FEENRA
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B EIEL AR - %D
TETHKHX,\_Y TNFM
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 TREREERAAEE)
(continued)
(d)  Foreign currency risk (d) HNERR
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. ARBTABHELBRAINE -
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must FT & 3% K A R &) SNE 32 5 w6
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other BB E ARRITHRAME
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. RIERESINERBIBETT
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange HNEE 22 5 BT EE BB B FE R AR
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the ARBITRMAOER - ZE5[E
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely REBTRHEKETE - AEER
by supply and demand. The Group is exposed to SNERBREZERBAELYE
foreign currency risk primarily through purchases and WIEEREE  MASBE®A
borrowings that are denominated in USD, while all the BEMEBRETZAARMKETT
other operations of the Group are mainly transacted in X5 o EXRBEZELAINET
RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the RMB value of B/ A ERIB A AN A R
purchase costs of commodities that are denominated in B -
foreign currencies.
The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure TRETRKAEER RS HAL
at the reporting date to currency risk arising from HEEERNERANINGEEE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency LN BB ENERREE
other than the functional currency of the entity to which sBEMELENEERR -
they relate.
2010 2009
—2-ZF ZEENE
USD’000 HKD’000 USD’000 HKD’000
TET FHET FET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents R & KIREEEY 7,384 29,727 80 21,967
Trade and other receivables  JEUE FBRX
R E A U FIR 1,883 381 900 -
Trade and other payables &S B S8R0
KE AR A (115,690) (2,579) (34,853) -
Loans and borrowings ERkEE (134,850) - (87,168) =
(241,273) 27,529 (121,041) 21,967
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 LEREREERAAREE)

(continued)
(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued) @) HNERR ()
The following table demonstrates the changes in the TRERNNREBE_ZE—ZF
USD and HKD exchange rates during the year ended 31 +-—A=+—BIEFENET
December 2010: RATIEERRES)
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNEF
usb Ep7
— Average rate — X 6.7704 6.8311
— Reporting date mid-spot rate — RS B REE 6.6227 6.8282
HKD BT
— Average rate —FifE K 0.8716 0.8813
— Reporting date mid-spot rate — R B EAR A REIE 0.8509 0.8805
Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis HNEBBE DT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TR TR B 2 Br T 1% i A
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) (RRB&A) AR SRS A EE
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the ZAlge 2 E) (AL E AL E
Group has significant exposure at the reporting date had EEERRR) ME A 2 A&
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables B REREMREARE L

remained constant.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

EREAREERAAMBGE)

(o) SMNBRERE)

The Group BEE
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ZETNEF

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) profit (decrease) profit

in foreign after tax and in foreign  after tax and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

E= HERBL 2 e TR

tH/  BIRRE /S OEFIRRR

(Tk) BAz¥E (T) wNzTE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT
uUSD =TT 5% (59,920) 5% (30,993)
(5%) 59,920 (5%) 30,9983

HKD BT 5% 869 5% 743
(5%) (869) (5%) (743)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
reporting date, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency and other investments. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 SREREERAARE(E)

(continued)
() Fair value e RhfE
() Financial instruments carried at fair value () BAAKEFENERMIA

TREZBRBERFBHREE
AIFE7TSHRIEMTE: ®
BIRRENDAEBE=E
RE - SR T R¥RE B A
AREFENSRIAR
HEE - ERTAERER
REAERMEANEE

2ENREBRSE - =

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
reporting date across three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured

follows: [ERBERDT :

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured . R—(&=E) :
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ANALBELERT S
markets for identical financial instruments FRESRTIAR

WECRKEAE) #
ha

o Level 2: fair value measured using quoted o R RAEN
prices in active markets for similar financial ERT ISR EUS
instruments, or using valuation techniques B T EHERERET
in which all significant inputs are directly or o} & A 4 B il i
indirectly based on observable market data E - AEREAN

FIEEZ2HEE
ok EEHIRE A
BRI TS EE

BR=(REE):

using valuation techniques in which any AR EERMGER

significant input is not based on observable ot E - MERFT

market data AHFEEZEZ2H
HRFREITHER
TiHEIR
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 LEREREERAAEE)

(continued)
(e)  Fair value (continued) e 2AREGE)
() Financial instruments carried at fair value () RBRAAREBEFENSERIA
(continued) (#&)
The Group rEH
2010
—2-%F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bx— BR= BRrR= a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR%®TR AR%®TR AR®TR
Derivatives PTETHR (211) 4,225 - 4,014
2009
—ZTTNF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fEx— Bx= Ex= B

RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTT

Available-for-sale Al HE SR EE
financial assets 30,390 =

RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTT

= 30,390

During the year there were no significant transfers
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2 (2009:
Nil).

(i)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at (ii)
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values as at 31
December 2010 (same for 2009).
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

() Estimation of fair values

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

Derivatives

Forward freight agreements are stated at quoted
market prices at the reporting date. Foreign
exchange option contracts and NDF portfolio
contracts are stated at their fair value using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs
are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2010 (same for 2009) due to either the
short maturities or variable market interest rate for
long-term bank borrowings.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options under the Pre-
IPO Option is measured using the Binomial
Model. Measuring inputs include the offer price,
the exercise price, the risk-free rate of interest,
expected option period, expected volatility
and expected dividend. Service and non-
market performance conditions attached to
the transactions are not taken into account in
determining the fair value.

31

TREREERAAMBEE)

(®)

(RN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AHHESRMEE

AfHEESREENAR
BERHEBERTISRE
758 B TAMRE
AR BHA

TETAE

SEHEHREREAT
BREIIR - INEHIES
R ARUGEIEAEH
BRRENE - WERM
EATHEE - HERRA
MATBEES2 BT ERN
&R 8 AT BT 5
B

BERREE

MR EHETEEAEER
HA 79 B HA sk AT & Ty 35 I =R
mitEE - Bt B RME
ERFER_ZT—ZTF
+—A=+—BZ2AKE
MERANSETE(=
TZNFEMER) °

RGO RER K5

EANGE 3=F0l -3¢ 3
TR D A ETR
A-IEAREEITAE -
AAEENBREEE 1T
BB REFERER - 18
HIRAREE - TRERE) TR
HIBR - RIS REM ISR
BIGFHEL T ABEAR
B RIFA -
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32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at the year end not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

32 EXREE

REFREARNERS

PSRRI

WEVRBITEARENT

2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —ZTTAEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Authorised but not contracted for B AEERETL - 313,420
Contracted for BET4 1,078,739 1,251,561
1,078,739 1,564,981
33 OPERATING LEASES 33 KR&EHE
(@) Leases as lessee @ EREAMBAZEE

RERER  AEBRETA
HEGEMEORYERENH A
BRREBAEFELBEWT

At each reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of properties are payable as follows:

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within 1 year —FR 87,351 5,945
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNA 18,977 19,576
After 5 years AFE 3,701 8,210
110,029 33,731
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33 OPERATING LEASES (continued) 33 KEHE(#E)
(b) Leases as lessor () {EAHBEAZEE

The Group leases out its vessels under operating leases AEEREBELEHYEHEESE
and the future minimum lease income under non- s MAREA AR Z 4
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: BB EEEFIHAENT ¢

2010 2009

—E-2F —ZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

Within 1 year —FR 4,809 -
34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EABEIRS
The Group has conducted certain transactions with AEBFHNEREERTEEEES
Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”) RARl([REEZE] RIREEETR
and Mr. Xu during the year. Mr. Xu is the shareholder of Qinfa 2 REERFREXERASEERK
Industry and Fortune Pearl, the ultimate controlling party of the Y% 77 Fortune Pearl BISER ©
Group.
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and REBEFNE FAMEETNEARS
the above related parties for the year are as follows: BT ¢
(@  Significant related party transactions @ EEREEIRS
() Recurring transactions (i) KEMHXS:
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Operating leases from FEFALKIRE ¢
— Qinfa Industry —REEX 1,209 1,209
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@)  Significant related party transactions (continued) (@

(ii) Non-recurring transactions

Interest-bearing borrowings from

— Mr. Xu
Interest charge

Repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings to
— Mr. Xu

(b)  Guarantees issued by related parties

Guarantees issued by Mr. Xu
- RMB
— HK Dollars
— US Dollars

Guarantees issued by Qinfa Industry
- RMB
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AHEEBEXRE
—fREE

(b)

fRITEH AR
—AREK
—BTT
—X7T
RUEHE

B A ER
—AR¥

34 EXBEARE(E)

EXEENRS (&)

(i) HFLEHERS :

2010 2009
—E-BF —ITTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
- 71,328
- 116
- 130,594

A& 7 IR R AR
2010 2009
—E-B8F —TTNF
thousand thousand
Srow T
1,140,000 440,000
320,000 320,000
23,580 59,370
- 200,000
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EABEARS (&)

(continued)

(©) Key management personnel remuneration ) FEAREEEBEALHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEBAREEEATHNEE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s (BEMFIORENST N FAR
directors as disclosed in Note 10 and certain of the AEENSERME11EED
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 11, is as BN FETEENSE=HM) 1
follows: ™

2010 2009
—E-=F ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Directors’ fee =N 568 256
Salaries, allowances and EAF S - 28
benefits in kind KR EYREH 8,944 4,186
Contributions to retirement RNEFFT B
benefit schemes 48 42
Discretionary bonuses E)IBTEAT 13,998 4,738
Share-based payments VARG A7 A B R B 5 30 1,030 817
24,588 10,039
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35

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB HE

has issued the following amendments, interpretations and one AR

new standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 — I ¥
December 2010 and which have not been adopted in these +=
financial statements. DI A

Amendments to IAS 32

T\EH+
IFRIC 19

158 32 5% (1ERT )

BB EREZE S —
REE 195
Amendments to IFRS 1

BIRR B T RS AR RIS 1 5% (IBATA)

Improvements to IFRSs 2010

H-E—TERIRAS
HEER 2 BuEE
Revised IAS 24
Re 2R 24 57 (BER])
Amendments to IFRIC 14,
IAS 19

BUFR B s S 2 R
—REE 145
. =] D+/EE|J

$RE8¢g

195}?({/!:!‘.[2’&)

S 285 A Pk

Financial instruments: Presentation —
Classification of rights issues
TRTH - 25— HRHHE
Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments
BITRATANEESRAE

First-time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited exemption

from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures
for first-time adopters

BRER A B B TS R s AR B —
B RER AN S B R B 7 sl = 22 R
FETRELBREERENERAR

Related party disclosures

BET 2 R

The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and
their interaction — Prepayments of
a minimum funding requirement
RENREERRTE - HIEBFIRTE
NEMEBR AN SERETRTE
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35 EEMGENARBE=Z—
+ZBA=t—-BLEEEHZB
5] FHERREN TS

'-”@ + \mj IJ]E> s;.

25

Wﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ I%E#
2 EHEM NIIER ﬁ&&
I ERBE-_FT—FF

Ei@fﬁ*iﬁ'ﬁ

R R P R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BHR 2 &R
WETHHIBEXN

1 February 2010

—E-TF-H—H
1 July 2010

—T-FFLA-H

1 July 2010

—T-FFLA-H

1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011
—T-TFLA-A%

—E—%—H—H
1 January 2011
—T——%—A—H

1 January 2011

—g——%-A—H
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 35
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT

NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010 (continued)

EEMENRAREZE-_F—FF
tTZA=+-BLEFEERZE
7T FEAIR RN A REE (F)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BHR 2 &R
WEFHEEN
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial 1 July 2011
Reporting Standards — Severe hyperinflation
and removal of fixed dates for
first-time adopters
BRI R S RIS 198 (BRI A)  BRIRABER M ISR EER —RE —E——%F+H—H
=B E RS ERERAE SR EE B 5
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — 1 July 2011
Transfer of financial assets
BRI M EERE 798 (1BF]A) SMIA: RE-SREECER —E——%+HA—H

Amendments to IAS 12

BIBR & EHAERIE 1258 (85T A)
IFRS 9

Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of
Underlying of financial assets

FriSH —IRIENIA - WRIHEEmEE

Financial instruments (2010)

1 January 2012

—E—_F—HA—H
1 January 2013

Basis for conclusions on IFRS 9 (2010)
Implementation guidance on IFRS 9 (2010)
SRTA(ZZE—ZF)

I % B 75 e o5 ZE | 38 O 51%

(ZE—ZF) 2BmEE

I A Bt 75 e 5 E R 28 9 5%

(ZZ—ZF) 2Bl

BIFR A1 75 3R 5 R RIS 9 5% —T—=%—A—H

AEERIEFERFETEV SRR
HRANBHTZE - BEZVHHRET
TR AKBRERMNZEER] - #E
AIRFTRBE AR e AEE KL E
EELRMBARREREATE -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. Up to the date of issuance of these
financial statements, the Group believes that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.
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36 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 36 EHERRKERAS

At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the immediate R-ZE—ZFF+_A=+—H EF
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be REAEEEZ QA RREERT
Fortune Pearl, which is incorporated in the British Virgin R—RZRRBEXESTMAIZE
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements Fortune Pearl » 52 & §8 30 AR 5L 7] it
available for public use. NRERR SR -
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